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CONFORMITY REPORT OF
ANNUAL ACTIVITY REPORT

pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
ANNUAL ACTIVITY REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To The Board of Directors of Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi;
Report on Annual Activity Report of Board of Directors within the scope of
External Audit Guidelines

1. We have audited annual activity report of Vakif Leasing Inc. ("Company"), and its subsidiaries (hereafter referred as "Group")
for the accounting period ending on 31 December, 2015.

Responsibility of Board of Directors for the Annual Activity Report

2. Company’s management is responsible for preparation of annual activity report, which coincides with consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Turkish Commercial Code ("TCC") under article 514 of law number 6102, and which reflects
provisions of "Communiqué on Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets (1-14.1) " ("Communiqué") of Capital
Markets Board ("CMB"), and for assurance of internal control required for preparation of such an activity report.

Responsibility of Independent Auditor

3. Our responsibility is to issue an opinion based on the independent audit we carried out in accordance to article 397 of TCC
and Communiqué, in order to evaluate whether the financial information in this activity report coincides with consolidated
financial statements of the independent auditors report of Group, dated 18 February, 2015.

We carried out an independent audit in accordance to External Audit Standards, which is a part of Turkish Auditing Standards
issued by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority. These standards ensure reconciliation to ethical
provisions and executions and assure that independent audit and financial information within this activity report coincide with
consolidated financial statements.

Independent audit involves application of audit procedures in order to obtain audit evidence about historical financial data. The
selection of such procedures is based on professional judgment of independent auditor.

We believe that audit evidence we obtain while an independent audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for an
audit opinion.

Basaran Nas Independent Auditor and independent Accountant Public Accountant Inc. a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
BJK Plaza, Siileyman Seba Avenue No. 48 B Block F: 9 Akaretler Besiktas; 34357 Istanbul- Turkey
www.pwc.com/tr Telephone: +90 (212) 326 6060, Facsimile: +90 (212) 326 6050
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Opinion

4. As a result of our assessment, we found no evidence of inconsistency regarding the information stated in audited financial
data of Board of Directors and consolidated financial statements.

Other liabilities arising from legislation
5. In accordance with the third paragraph of Article 402 of Turkish Commercial Code, law number 6102; there was no evidence

that need to be reported about that Vakif Leasing Inc. cannot continue on activities in the foreseeable future within the
framework of BDS 570 "continuity of business".

Bagaran Nas Bafimsiz Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik A.§.
a member of

Bagaran Nas

Independent Auditor and Independent Accountant Public Accountant Inc.
A member of PricewaterhouseCoopers

Zeynep URAS, Independent Accountant and Financial Advisor

Cap Auditorlstanbul, March 4, 2016
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VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN OF BOARD DIRECTORS

[| Established in 1988 as one of the first leasing companies under the leadership of our majority shareholder
Vakifbank, our company has remained in 2015 too as in previous years as a company preserving its
pioneering role in use, promotion and development of the product of Financial Leasing prevailing both

across the entire world and in our country. Il

Established in 1988 as one of the first leasing companies under the
leadership of our majority shareholder Vakifbank, our company has
remained in 2015 too as in previous years as a company preserving its
pioneering role in use, promotion and development of the product of
Financial Leasing prevailing both across the entire world and in our
country.

With its intensified customer relations, our Company has contributed
significantly to the national economy by financing investments of
manufacturing and service industries as well as SMEs, and using its
resources in line with the requirements of economic development, it has

continued to be a symbol for a long-established tradition and experience.

It will be appropriate to state that, in 2015 during which worldwide
economic and structural disruptions continued and in an environment
where our country witnessed two political elections, our Company was
affected at the very least by the negativities brought by the global crisis.

Keeping its fingers on the economy due to the fact that it directly financ-
es investments and production, Financial Leasing sector has enabled
various investments to be actualized and has become an outstanding
financial player in demands for fixed capital investments owing to the
powerful fiscal policies in force in our country and determined economic
measures taken.

While currently almost 7% of private-sector fixed capital investments in
our country is financed through financial leasing, it is observed that this
number reaches up to 30% in developed countries. This is also an
indicator showing that there still lies a lot of ground for the industry to
cover.
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Improvement of economic market share and enhancement of
product range of non-bank financial sector in our country, strength-
ening and intensifying fields of activity and providing required
support for SMEs can be made possible through enabling the
industry to have access over investible resources from both inside
and outside the country in equality of competition and opportuni-
ties, and economic stabilization will positively contribute to the
development process of leasing sector.

As Vakif Leasing, preserving our intensive customer relation and
loyalty despite all the negative conditions experienced during 2015
and without compromising our high quality service concept, we have
brought best solutions for the incoming investment demands
maintaining our notion of risk and thus succeeded to become a
company that has made a difference across the industry.

Aiming at national economic development, enabling new employ-
ment opportunities and supporting our SMES serving as the locomo-
tives of our national economy, our Company will preserve its custom-
er-oriented, open-for-improvement and prudent approach and
maintain its position as one of the most important financial players in
the financial leasing sector in 2016 as well.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our customers, employ-
ees and all the other social shareholders for their ongoing support
and confidence on behalf of our Board of Directors and stakeholders,
and congratulate all those who have contributed to our develop-
ment.

Best Regards,

KSAC
Chairman of the Board
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VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

MESSAGE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

Our Company has completed 2015 with pride and confidence of taking
firms steps forward in our journey ongoing for 28 years, and continued to
contribute to the national economy despite the global economic
uncertainty with its confidence-oriented concept of service and dynamic
human resources having the ability to make a difference.

As the result of synergy and common shares created with our majority
shareholder Vakifbank, one of the most well-established banks of Turkey,
we are delighted to see that the support and quality service we provide
for financial markets have increasingly grown.

With the powerful financial structure of our Company, our dynamic
policy of human resources and alternative financial solutions we offer for
investors, we believe that our share in the financial leasing sector will be
on the rise next year.

Positive contributions of new financing methods such as operational
leasing, sale and lease back and software leasing, which were introduced
to the market by the Law on Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies No. 6361 being effective upon publication in the Official
Gazette No. 28496 dated 13.12.2012, to the profoundness and maturity
of the sector having a 31-year background in Turkey have been adopted
by the industry and it is also expected that these developments will
contribute to the sector also in the years to come.
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Our Company has completed 2015 with pride and
confidence of taking firms steps forward in our
journey ongoing for 28 years, and continued to
contribute to the national economy despite the
global economic uncertainty with its confidence-ori-
ented concept of service and dynamic human
resources having the ability to make a difference.

In 2015 our Company raised its year-over-year size of assets up to 1,5
Billion TLs with an increase of 25%, its leasing receivables to 1,3
Billion TLs with 22%, and shareholders’ equity to 143 Million TLs with
36%, and maintained its growth trend. Giving precedence to profita-
bility regarded as the requirement of healthy growth, our company
generated a net profit of 23,6 Million TLs in 2015.

Thanks to its experience of a quarter-century, Vakif Leasing will
continue its support for small- and medium-scale investors and its
contribution to the country’s economy in 2016 as much as in 2015
with its strong capital structure, modern-educated team of experts
accommodating themselves to competitive conditions and its
organic model of growth.

After a prospering year, submitting our International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS)activity report and financial statements
for 2015 enclosed in the attachment, | would like to thank our
customers, economic and social shareholders and all our stockhold-
ers for their support and confidence, and to express my gratitude to
our Board of Directors and colleagues for their vigorous and devoted
efforts and contributions.

Best Regards,

B ooy —

Osman Zeki OZGER
General Manager
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VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

MEMBER OF THE BOARDS

Osman DEMREN Prof.Dr.Siikrii KARATEPE Osman Zeki OZGER Seref AKSAC Erkut AKPINAR Telat KARAPINAR ibrahim Halil GiFTCI
Member of the Board, Member of the Board Member of the Board/  Chairman of the Member of the Board ~ Member of the Board Member of the Board
Deputy Chairman General Manager Board
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Seref AKSAC

Chairman of the Board

Osman DEMREN

Member of the Board, Deputy Chairman

il
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Erkut AKPINAR

Member of the Board

i

Telat KARAPINAR

Member of the Board

Prof.Dr.Siikrii KARATEPE

Member of the Board

ibrahim Halil CIFTCI

Member of the Board

Osman Zeki OZGER

Member of the Board / General Manager

(01.04.2015- ...)

He was born in Bayburt in 1956. He graduated Istanbul Academy of Economics and Commercial Sciences, Faculty of Political Sciences,
Department of Public Administration in 1979. Starting his professional career in 1982 as a Deputy Inspector at T.C. Ziraat Bankasi A.S.,
Aksag was promoted to become an Inspector in 1986. He performed duties as Istanbul Branch Deputy Manager between 1990 and 1993
and as a Manager in various branches of the Bank from 1993 to 2003. He was assigned as the Vice General Manager Responsible for
Human Resources between 2003 and 2005. In addition to these positions, he worked as the member of Board of Supervisors at Basak
Sigorta and of Board of Directors at Tirkmen Turkish Joint-Stock Commercial Bank and Ziraat Yatinm ve Menkul Degerler. While Aksag
held a position at Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.S. as Sales and Marketing Vice General Manager and Deputy General Manager in August
2012, he was assigned as the General Manager of Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.S. as of March 2013. He is married and a father of one. On
30.04.1014 he was elected as the Member of Board of Directors at the Extraordinary General Meeting of T. Vakiflar Bankasi TA.O. Also
performing a duty as a Member of Credit Committee and the Committee of Accounting at T.Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O., Seref AKSAC has
preserved its position as the Board Chairman of our Company since 01.04.2015 and has been working as the Vice President of the Board
at Vakif Emeklilik A.S.

(31.03.2011-...)

Joining T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. as a Deputy Inspector on December 16, 1996, Osman Demren then worked at the Bank
as a Deputy Manager, Branch and Relgional Director and was later promoted to become the Deputy General Manager
on March 23, 2011. He graduated Dokuz Eyliil University, Faculty of Economic and Administrative Sciences, Department
of Business Administration. Completing his postgraduate education at Okan University, Banking Program, Osman
Demren is knowledgeable in English language. He has been working as the Deputy General Manager at T. Vakiflar
Bankasi T.A.O. since April 6, 2011. He is responsible for Commercial and Corporate Loans Department, Personal Loans
and SME Loans Department and the Department of Intelligence. Elected as a Board Member ]!z;r Vakif Finansal Kiralama
A.S. to be effective from March 31, 2011, Osman DEMREN has been performing his duties as the Vice President of the
Board of Directors since April 1, 2015. He is a Member of the Boards of Vakifbank International A.G. and Vakif Gayrimen-
kul Yatirim Ortakligi A.S.

(01.04.2015-...)

Born in 1972, Erkut AKPINAR is a graduate of Ankara University, Faculty of Political Sciences, Department of Internation-
al Relations. Taking office in 1997 as a Vice Financial Analﬁst at Vakifbank, he continued his duty as a Deputy Inspector
in 1998. He worked as the Vice Manager of Kizilay Branci ?f the Bank, as Vice General Manager at the Austria-based
subsidiary of the Bank named Vakifbank International AG from 2007 to 2011 and as the General Manager between
2011 and 2014. Holding a position as the President of Vakifbank Private Banking since August 1, 2014, AKPINAR can
speak English and German. Elected as the Board Member of Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. on 01.04.2014, Erkut AKPINAR
is also a member of Committee of Corporate Management and Committee of Early Detection of Risk.

(30.04.2012-...)

Telat KARAPINAR who gratuated from the faculty of law, Istanbul University in 1992, was self-employed lawyer in
between 1994-2002. Telat KARAPINAR who was the deputy in 22nd period of the Grand National Assembly of Turkey,
has been being a member of the executive board of Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. since 16.04.2014.

(29.03.2012-...)

Graduating from Ankara Faculty of Law in 1973, Siikrii KARATEPE became a Doctor of Administrative Law in 1983,
Associate Professor of Constitution in 1989 and a Professor in 2012. He worked as a Council Member of Faculty of
Economic and Administrative Sciences and Head of the Department of Public Administration at Ege University, Kayseri
Metropolitan Municipality Mayor, Chairman of the Board of Electricity Corporation Of Kayseri and Surroundings,
Member of Board of Supervisors at the companies affiliated to Erdemir Group and Board Member at Vakif Yatirm
Menkul Degerler A.S. Elected as the Board Member of Vakif Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S. on March 29, 2012, Siikrii
KARATEPE is a Member at the Committee of Supervisors. Additionally, Siikrii KARATEPE currently works as the Senior
Advisor to the President.

(29.03.2012-...)

Ibrahim Halil CIFTCI who gratuated from the department of Business Administration, Middle East Technical University,
was respectively the auditor in the comitee of inspector of Is Bankasi in between 1974-2001, the vice director of 2nd
Credits Regional Directoire, the director of 2nd Credits Regional Djrectoire, the regional director of Istanbul, the director
of Taksim branch and Galata branch. Between 1987 and 2008, CIFTCI was a member of the executive boards of Trakya
Iplik San. A.S., Man Motor San. A.S, Topkapi Sise Cam Cam San. A.S, Anadolu Cam San. A.S., Anadolu Sigorta A.S.,
Sisecam Fabrikalar1 A.S., Is Girisim A.S. and Is Factoring A.S. . Ibrahim Halil CIFTCI was the general director of Is Finansal
Kiralama A.S. between 2001-2009 and the vice chairman of the executive board o/ Financial Leasing Association in
between 2004 and 2009. He who was appointed as a member of Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S in 16.04.2014, is also the
member of the Corporate Governance Board and the Early Detection of Risk Committee. Halil Ibrahim CIFTCI is the vice
ﬂresident of Economic Research Foundation and the member of the executive board of Istanbul Universitesi Teknokent

(07.04.2008 - ...)

Osman Zeki OZGER who taken the responsibility of the president of T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. Anadolu Kurumsal Merkezi

at the end of 2006 after having being the director in the various banks, has been being the chairman and member of the

executive board in “Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S”. Osman Zeki OZGER who has been being the chairman of the executive

Zoard of Association of Financial Institutions since the date of the report, gratuated from the faculty of science, Atattirk
niversity.
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THE MANAGEMENT

Ozgiir SELCUK

Deputy General Manager

Mehmet ilka; v v
coskuN Yilmaz Arslan AYDIN Emre AYDEDE Tolga AKOCAK
Group Manager Group Manager Group Manager Marketing Manager

i Ahmet Erdogan V o
Gonca YADIGAR Ferruh ATALAY
Marketing Manager NEHROZOGLU Levent DEMIRCI

Adana Branch Manager Bursa Branch Manager
Ankara Branch Manager £

/4

Bora KIRGIZ Mustafa COLAK Murat KURTTAS Melda AKGUN

izmir Branch Manager Gebze Branch Manager Antalya Branch Manager Insurance and
Operations Manager

gﬁgngcizaln(ijT Mustafa SARITAS Vedat YILMAZ Hiilya YILDIRIM

i Administrative Servi Asset and
Risk Management Manager :\rhf;);?gztrlon Technology Ma”,?'a”g'érra NESEIVEES Risk Management Manager

Sadik Caglar V
KAYNAK

Internal Control Manager
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VAKIF LERSING
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GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING COMPANY e

Date of Establishment 15/09/1988

°
® Activity Area Financial Leasing

® Company Headquarters istanbul

@ Paid in Capital 65.000 BinTL

® Number of Employees 53

® Board Chairman Seref AKSAC

® General Manager Osman Zeki OZGER

® Independent Auditing Firm Basaran Nas Independent Auditor and independent Accountant Public Accountant Inc.
® Address - Corporate Headquarters Bilyiikdere Av. Matbuat Street Gazeteciler Site No: 13 Esentepe/Sisli/istanbul

® Telephone 90(212) 337 67 67 - (Santral)

® Trade Registry Number 248616

® Fax 90(212) 3376799

® \Website www.vakifleasing.com.tr

AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

® \akif Insurance Intermediary Services Ltd.
® \akif Factoring Services Inc.

® \akif Marketing Ind. and Trade Inc.

® Vakif Energy and Mining Inc.

® Dogu Investment Holding Inc.

® \akif Investment Securities, Inc.

® \World Vakif UBB. Co. Ltd. (In liquidation)

PARTNERSHIP STRUCTURE

% Thousand TL
o T.Vakiflar Bankasi TAO % 58,71 |38.163
® Giines Insurance Inc. % 15,65 |10.172 ,"
® T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. % 2,06 [1.340 .

Employees and Serv. ,
Retirement Fund Provident 1
Fund Fondation
@ VakifBank Staff Private % 1,04 675
Social Security Services Foundation

1
1
]
1
1
1

® Public Offering % 22,53 14'647‘.

e Other partners %0,01 |3 '

Toplam % 100,00 | 65,000

[ Vakif Leasing
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VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

CORPORATE IDENTITY / HISTORY - MILESTONES

Vakif Leasing was established on 15 September, 1988
under the title of VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S. as a
subsidiary of Vakifbank. It was quoted on Istanbul Stock
Market in 1991 and became the first publicly-traded
leasing company.

Having successfully operated for 27 years, Vakif Leasing
continues to be one of the assets of Turkey by contribut-
ing economic and employment growth. Providing
advantage in leasing to its investors due to its determin-
istic, assured and progressive approach, Vakif Leasing
takes firm steps towards the future by help of its experi-
ence in making right decisions at right time.

Vakif Leasing has a wide range of expertise, especially in
investments of real estate, energy, technology, transport
and tourism.

The most remarkable indicator of the innovative
approach of Vakif Leasing is that it is the first company
providing leasing services to sectors like aircraft,
aviation; or wind energy.

Vakif Leasing has branches in Ankara, Adana, Izmir and
Bursa and carries on its extensive operations by provid-
ing service with its almost 900 Vakifbank branches all
over the country, and with its broad customer portfolio
and service network.

174 2

2015

Vakif Leasing reached at
1,505,588 BinTL assets,
23,637 BinTL'lik Net profit in 2015.

2014

Vakif Leasing reached at
289,848 USD endorsement
in 2014.

2013

Vakif Leasing
active total assets reached at
1,066,607 TL.

2012

Vakif Leasing active reached at
806,909 TL and equity capital
reached at 107,400 TL.

2007

The Central
Anatolia Agency
was opened.

1991

Vakif Leasing
was the first
leasing public

1988

Vakif Leasing
was established

o]

cdedueds
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VAKIF LERSING
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CORPORATE IDENTITY / Our vision - Our mission - Our values - Our Codes Of Conduct

To be a Leader Company, which is the first choice of

investors in the Leasing sector by providing the optimal

financial opportunities in customer investments; and

which aims for utmost customer satisfaction and ﬁl
service quality.

S

To create continuous value for our customers, employ-
ees and shareholders by development of a successful,
modern and customer-oriented approach.

<

High-quality service based on information and creativity;
Rapid and effective decision-making;

A strong sense of responsibility on a long lasting
development approach

Open communication based on mutual trust,
Employees who devoted to success and team spirit,

Commitment to ethical and professional codes of conduct

/4

High-quality service based on informatio.
Rapid and effective decision-makin,

A strong sense of responsibili
development approach

Open communication based
Employees who devoted to s

Commitment to ethical an

Vak
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VAKIF LERSING
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VAKIF FINANCIAL LEASING INC. CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE REPORT

CHAPTER I -
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. ("Vakif Leasing" or "Company") is
affiliated to the corporate governance guidelines designated in
accordance with the Law on Financial leasing, Factoring and
Financing Companies, capital market legislations and Turkish
Commercial Code and relevant regulations to regulate the estab-
lishment and operating principles of and related regulations, and
pays utmost attention to the implementation of these principles.
It has adopted concepts of equality, transparency, accountability,
and responsibility of Corporate Governance Principles ("Princi-
ples") published by Capital Market Board ("CMB").

The company is in concordance with the following principles of
Corporate Governance Principles included in Communiqué on
Corporate Governance No. II-17.1, published in the Official
Gazette No. 28871 dated 3 January, 2014:

a-) Company fully complies with following principles: (1.3.1.),
(1.3.5.),(1.36.),(1.39), (4.2.6), (4.3.1.),(4.3.2),(433.), (434),
(435.),(436.),(43.7),(43.8),(4.5.1), (45.2), (45.3.), (45.4.),
(45.9.),(4.5.10.),(4.5.11.), (4.5.12), (4.5.13.), (4.6.2.) and (4.6.3.).
Duty, authorization and responsibility of "Directorate of Investor
Relations", which performs operations as the Directorate of
Financial Affairs and Investor Affairs, were revised in accordance
with framework stated in Article 11 of Communiqué on Corpo-
rate Governance and thereby ensured full compliance with the
relevant legislation

b-) b-) About non-mandatory principles;

There are no female members in the Board of Directors of the
Company. Neither target time nor ratio has been determined for
the existence rate of females within Board of Directors. Therefore,
compliance with the advisory principle 4.3.9 is out of question.
There has been no conflict of interest among stakeholders up to
now due to nonfulfillment of the mentioned principle.

CHAPTER Il - STAKEHOLDERS

Directorate of Investor Relations operates under Deputy General
Manager Ozgiir SELCUK, for performance of tasks of Directorate
of Investor Relations as part of the Directorate of Financial Affairs
and Investor Relations.

Directorate of Financial Affairs and Investor Relations, which
manages relationships with institutional investors, rating
agencies, and shareholders, makes presentation of execution of
all activities to the Board, in addition to presentation of compara-
tive financial analysis with competitors quarterly.

The license of section manager is as shown below;
Name/Surname

License
(Ozgiir SELCUK Deputy General Manager Corporate Governance Rating

Serves as a member of the Corporate Governance Committee in accordance to paragraph 2 of Article 11 of Communiqué
on Corporate Governance.

Staff involved to carry out tasks of Directorate of Investor
Relations within Directorate of Financial Affairs and Investor
Relations is as shown below;

Phone Number

Name / Surname

Ozgiir Deputy General 0212 337 67 67 0.SELCUK@vakifleasing.com.tr
SELCUK Manager

Mehmet ilkay Group Coordinator | 0212 337 67 67 |.COSKUN@vakifleasing.com.tr
COSKUN

Neslihan Specialist 0212 337 67 67 N.YILDIZLI@vakifleasing.com.tr
YILDIZLI

Fatma Specialist 0212 337 67 67 F.HAFIZOGLU@vakifleasing.com.tr
HAFIZOGLU

Main duties and responsibilities of Directorate of Investor
Relations are as follows;

- Ensure to keep records of the shareholders safe and current,

- Respond to written requests of shareholders regarding the
company, excluding publicly undisclosed, confidential informa-
tion and trade secrets related to the Company,

- Ensure that the General Assembly meetings are held in accord-
ance with the standing legislation; Articles of Association or other
internal arrangements,

- Issue necessary documents for shareholders to make use of
during the General Assembly,

- Ensure that voting records are kept and reports regarding the
results are sent to shareholders,

- Supervise and monitor any kind issues regarding public disclo-
sure, including legislation and the company's disclosure policy.

During 2015 Directorate of Investor Relations;

- organized that the Ordinary General Meeting in 2015 was held
according to scope and method required by the Relevant Law,
Capital Market Law, Communiqué on Corporate Governance,
Articles of Association and other legislations.

Vakif Leasing

Size Dogru Gelecek



2.2 Utilization of Shareholders’ Right to Information

Questions addressed to the Department of Investor Relations by
shareholders are first consulted to top authority on the matter
and then are responded ether written or by call, except for
confidential information and trade secrets regarding the
Company.

In 2015, no information requests are delivered to the Investor
Relations Department while questions asked on call were replied
as required. Information and developments concerning share-
holders, regarding Company, such as stock transactions, capital
increase, dividend taking operations, general meeting, financial
reports, disclosures or etc. are regularly transmitted to the parties
either by website, by phone or via mail. In addition, the status of
stocks of domestic shareholders in operating cycle, information
requests on share transactions after conversion of existing shares
or death of a shareholder are sent, if requested in written form.
On the other hand, request for the appointment of a special
auditor is not regulated as an individual right in the Articles of
Association and no such demand was made during the
concerned activity period.

2.3 General Assembly Meetings

General Assembly Meeting on the 2014 activity period of our
Company was held at the head office, on April 1, 2015, with the
participation by shareholder representatives, the Commissioner
from the Ministry of Customs and Trade, and holders of 77% of
total shares.

Company held the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting in 2015
in accordance with the provisions of "Regulations on the General
Assembly to be held in Electronic Media in Incorporated Compa-
ny" and "Communiqué on General Assembly System to be
applied in the General Assembly of Incorporated Company".
Thus, stakeholders had the opportunity to participate in the
General Assembly meetings electronically, to make suggestions,
to declare their views and to vote.

In order to inform the shareholder, letter of invitation, agenda,
sample of power of attorney and information required for voting
in the General Assembly were announced to public prior to
General Assembly meetings, via Public Disclosure Platform,
Turkey Trade Registry Gazette and at least two daily newspapers
that are published throughout Turkey in accordance with relevant
legislations; besides, these documents were also published on
the website of Company. The calls for e-General Assembly, which
allows participation through electronic media, and which gives
possibility to make recommendations; to announce views or to
vote in General Assembly Meeting of Company, are made
through CRA system at least 21 days before, excluding days of
meetings. In addition, such documents are sent via mail to
registered current addresses of shareholders.
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Bank Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Statement, Board of Direc-
tors' Annual Report, Auditor's Report of fiscal year 2014 and
Report of the Independent External Auditors were issued before
General Assembly and are available for surveillance of our share-
holders before meeting, in Company's Headquarters or on CRA
system. In addition, letter of invitation, agenda and samples of
power of attorney for the General Assembly might be obtained
upon request of the stakeholders. Those shareholders, who have
right to attend the General Assembly, and who fulfilled required
procedures for participation, attended the Annual General Meet-
ingin 2015.

On announcement and invitation letters issued prior to the
General Assembly:

- Date, time and place of the meeting,

- Agenda of the meeting,

- By which state body it is held (Company Board of Directors),

- Annual Report and addresses where balance, profit and loss
statements will be presented for examination by partners
(General Directorate) for ordinary meeting announcements,

- samples of power of attorney for those unable to attend the
meeting themselves are announced.

Activity Report included documents, such as Company activities,
information of executives, company balance sheets, balance
sheet footnotes, Independent Auditors' Report, or Report on
Compliance with Corporate Governance Principles. Activity
Report is presented to shareholders upon request of Directorate
of Investor Relations, before or after General Assembly.

Regardless their share, all shareholders have the right to take the
floor, to express their opinion and to ask questions regarding
issues of agenda during Ordinary General Assembly. The
questions of shareholders, who participated Ordinary General
Assembly meeting on April 1, 2015, either physically or electroni-
cally; their requests and thoughts; the answers of Chairman of
the meeting and Council Board were recorded as minutes
throughout General Assembly Meeting. General Assembly meet-
ing minutes and attachments were delivered to shareholders and
were announced to the public by Public Disclosure Platform,
Turkey Trade Registry Gazette, and e-Company Information
Portal and e-General Assembly Electronics General Assembly
System in accordance with relevant legislation after the General
Assembly, and also were posted on the website of the Company.

Since approval of majority of independent Board Members were
not achieved, in 2015, the decision by the General Assembly was
not required.

Amendments were made on the articles 8 and 9 stated in the
chapters titled as “Goal and Scope” of the Articles of Associations.

In accordance with the last topic of the agenda, shareholders and
other invitees used their right o ask questions, after receiving
satisfying responses by company managers in return, they
expressed their good wishes.
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There exists no relevance, which may cause a conflict of interest,
between shareholders, Board Members, Administrative Manag-
ers or their spouses, blood relatives or second-degree relatives
with Company or its subsidiaries. In addition, it is clearly under-
stood that certain party did not transact a commercial business in
operation field neither on their own nor on someone else’s
account and that they did not carry out any transaction with
another shareholder in terms of unlimited partnership dealing
with the same type of commercial business.

In accordance with the last topic of the agenda, shareholders and
other invitees used their right o ask questions, after receiving
satisfying responses by company managers in return, they
expressed their good wishes.

2.4 Voting and Minority Rights

Provisions relating to voting rights of shareholders and to use of
these rights are described in Articles of Association of Company.

Those, who have or represent ten shares at the General Assem-
bly, have right of one vote. Those, who have more than ten
shares, have right to vote according to a number, which is deter-
mined according to the above ratio without being subject to
restrictions.

No reciprocal shareholding is present within capital of Company.
The use of minority rights is subject to Turkish Commercial Code,
Capital Market Law, relevant legislations; communiqués and
resolutions of CMB

2.5 Profit Share Right

There exists no privilege regarding participation in profit of The
Company.

The profit distribution policy of Company was redefined accord-
ing to Capital Market Legislation, provisions of Turkish Commer-
cial Code, tax legislation and other related legislation provisions.

Profit distribution proposal of Company's Board of Directors,
which was prepared for submission to the General Assembly for
approval; Any profit distribution proposal made by Board of
Directors for submission of approval of the General Assembly is
prepared in such a way to protect delicate balance between
shareholder expectations; the profitability status of Company
and need for future growth.

Accordingly,"As per Articles of Association, it is agreed to make a
first dividend payment at the rates and amounts specified by the
Capital Markets Board in case of any distributable profit.”

In Articles of Association, there exists no regulation provision
regarding distribution of an advance dividend.

Every year, Board of Directors presents a proposal regarding profit
sharing to General Assembly and to shareholders, together with
activity report prior to the General Assembly. The proposal
regarding profit sharing of the Board of Directors is discussed and
resolved in General Assembly. Decisions taken in 2015 regarding
profit sharing for 2014 were implemented and necessary notifi-
cations were made to the authorities. Relevant decisions were
also announced to public through the Public Disclosure Platform
on the very same day.

2.6 Assignment of Shares

There exists no provision in Articles of Association, which restricts
the assignment of shares. According to Article 7 of Articles of
Association, all Company shares are registered, and might be
assigned in accordance with the provisions of the related legisla-
tion.

CHAPTER Ill - PUBLIC DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

3.1 Corporate Website and Content

You may have access to website of Company, with alternatives in
Turkish or English: www.vakifleasing.com.tr.

Website of Company is compatible with the principles regarding
corporate website of Communiqué on Corporate Governance
(-17.1) numbered (2.1.1), (2.1.2) and (2.1.3), issued on January 3,
2014, by the CMB.

3.2 Activity Report

Activity Report of the Company is issued in accordance with the
principles regarding annual report of Communiqué on Corporate
Governance (II-17.1), with article number (2.2.1) and (2.2.2),
published on January 3, 2014 by the CMB.
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CHAPTER IV - Stakeholders
4.1 Informing of Stakeholders

Vakifleasing stakeholders are regularly informed through activity
reports, news and statements on website about issues regarding
stakeholders.

In order to ensure accurate and reliable information flow, the
information disclosed in financial statements, published in every
quarter, are shared with investors through the website; or are
announced in PDP. Any questions or demands of investors are
responded via phone and email.

4.2 Participation Stakeholders' in Management

In our Company, there exists two different models concerning the
contribution of stakeholders to management: Committee Meet-
ing: Decisions that are taken in regular committee meetings are
implemented by our company.

Proposal System: Via this system, employees have possibility to
submit their recommendations regarding improvement and
development of Company in every respect, and appropriate
recommendations are taken into consideration.

Moreover, in order to inform employees regarding the general
status of the Company and to receive their recommendations,
"Weekly General Assessment Meetings" are organized, where
financial structure and performance data of Company are evalu-
ated with employees.

4.3 insan Kaynaklari Politikasi

Our Human Resources Policy is conducted within the framework
of personnel regulations, which entered in force in 2005. In
addition, we perform career planning and development. Our
company plays a major role in the success and development of
the sector. Vakif Leasing places importance particularly on educa-
tion and thus, provides equipment necessary for efficient opera-
tion to its employees, considering its employees as its major
capital. It works with employees who make researches, and who
have visionary, creative and problem solving qualities.

All employees at our Company have a notion of working with
team spirit and a high level of innovative creativity.

In Vakif Leasing, recruitments and promotions are carried out by
decisions given by Board of Directors within the framework of
Personnel Regulations. There exists no discrimination in any
means among our employees of Company, and our employees
are equal under any circumstance.
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4.4 Ethics and Social Responsibility

¢ Full compliance with the regulations issued by the law.

e Honesty, transparency and accountability in the relationship
with the customer- seller-creditor.

e QOperating by taking into account the grounds of economic
growth, in addition to profitability.

e Respect to confidential information and privacy to keep secrets.
 Respect to common interest of the sector in order not to create
an unfair competition

Vakif Leasing is aware of its social responsibilities towards its
customers, employees and society; and strives for fulfilling these
responsibilities in the best possible way. It obeys all the regula-
tions regarding the business life; stands behind the commitments
it announces to public; gives confidence; encourages its employ-
ees towards honest and ethical conduct; takes all the precautions
necessary for the security of its premises, does not conduct
deceptive promotional or marketing activities; and obeys and
encourages regulations prohibiting discrimination. Vakif Leasing
strives for solving the customer problems quickly, covers the
significant part of its employees’ health expenses and continu-
ously aims for increasing its service quality.

CHAPTER V - BOARD OF DIRECTORS
5.1 Structure and Formation of the Board of Directors

The structure of the Board of Directors is defined as follows
according to Article 8 of Articles of Association:

"The company's operations and management are conducted by
a Board of Directors consisting of at least five members, including
General Manager. Every year, Board of Directors chooses a Chair-
man among the members and a Deputy Chairman to deputize
him in his absence. Chairman of the Board and General Manager
cannot be the same person. All members of Board, excluding
General Manager, are elected by shareholders represented in
General Assembly in accordance with the provisions of the
Turkish Commercial Code. The majority of Board Members are
not responsible from daily activities. Non-ordinary Board Mem-
bers are elected from the candidates who could conduct his/her
work independently without any influence according to Capital
Markets Board. General Manager and Deputy General Manager
are ordinary members of the Board of Directors. General Manag-
er and his Deputy should have a bachelor degree and should be
experienced in finance or business administration for at least
seven years.
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STARTING
DATE OF
THIS
NAME / SURNAME POSITION
Seref AKSAC Chairman of the Board 01/04/2015
0] DEMREN
sman Deputy Chairman of the Board 31/03/2011
Member of the Board 01/04/2015
Erkut AKPINAR Member of Corporate Governance Committee 09/04/2015
Early Identification of Risk Committee Member 09/04/2015
o Independent Memeber of the Board 29/03/2012
Prof.Dr.Sukri KARATEPE
Member of the Audit Committee - Chariman 11/04/2012
Telat KARAPINAR Member of the Board 30/04/2012
Yénetim Kurulu Uyesi 29/03/2012
Corporate Governance Committee -
. . 11/04/2012
ibrahim Halil Chariman
CIFTCI Early Identification of Risk Committee -
Chairman 30/04/2013
Member of the Audit Committee 11/04/2012
Osman Zeki Member of the Board - General
7GER Manager 07/04/2008

There exists no executive assignment of Chairman of the Board of Directors. General Manager Osman Zeki
OZGER is executive member in the Board of Directors.

Personal background of Members of Board of Directors are published in the Activity Report. Pursuant to
statement with serial IV article no. 56 of Corporate Governance Principles of CMB concerning establishment
of a Corporate Governance Committee, election of two independent members is foreseen. Stikrii KARA-
TEPE and ibrahim Halil CIFTCI fulfill requirements for being an Independent Member in accordance with
articles 4.3.6 and 4.3.7 of Corporate Governance Principles of CMB. Their declarations of independence
corresponding relevant legislation; Articles of Association and relevant communiqué were presented in
report of March 6, 2015. Independent Members were presented to Board of Directors on March 11, 2015.

No circumstance, which invalidates the declaration of independence of independent members of Board of
Directors; or independence of Members within relevant operating cycle, is encountered.
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Partnerships and tasks of members of Board of
Directors outside company:

NAME / SURNAME POSITION
T.Vakif Bank TAO. Member of the Board
Seref AKSAC . Deputy Chairman of the
Vakif Emeklilik A.S. Board
T.Vakif Bank TAO. Deputy General Manager
Vakifbank International
Osman DEMREN AG. Member of the Board
Vakif Real Estate | tment
In?:.l eal tstate Invesimen Member of the Board
Chairman of the
Erkut AKPINAR T.Vakif Bank TAO. Retail Banking

5.2 Activity Principles of Board of Directors

General Assembly regarding activities of the Company is held
either in headquarters of Company; or in a location, where
majority of Board Members request. However, General Assembly
should gather at least once on a monthly basis. Though not
gathered acknowledgedly, presence of all members at the meet-
ing place on a given day and time does not prejudice to the
validity of Assembly. Those who have right to participate in the
General Assembly may participate via an electronic media in
accordance with Article 1527 of the Turkish Commercial Code.
Company may install a system that allow stakeholders to partici-
pate and to vote through electronic media in accordance with the
provisions of Communiqué on General Assembly; and also may
purchase service from systems formed with this purpose. In
General Assembly to be held, it is ensured that stakeholders use
their rights that are set forth in the relevant legislation within
framework of Communiqué provisions via a system established in
accordance with this provision of Articles of Association or
through a system offering support services. Turkish Commercial
Code shall apply for quorum regarding General Assembly.

The agenda of General Assembly is determined according to
provisions and authority stipulated in the Articles of Association.
30 General Assembly meetings were held between January 1,
2015 and December 31, 2014. General Assembly regarding activi-
ties of Company is held either in headquarters of Company; or in
a location, where majority of Board Members request. However,
General Assembly should gather at least once on a monthly basis.
Turkish Commercial Code shall apply for quorum regarding
General Assembly. The task of informing and communicating
Board Members is carried about by General Manager Secretary.
Decisions taken that need be disclosed to the public are
announced immediately after meeting.

All members actively take part in meetings held on following
issues:
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- ldentification of operation fields of Company, approval of
business and financing plans;

- Summoning for Ordinary or Extraordinary General Assembly
and its organization;

- Confirmation of annual report to be submitted in General
Assembly;

- Selection of the Chairman, Deputy Chairman of Board and
appointment of new members;

- Establishment of administrative units or termination of its activi-
ties;

- Appointment or dismissal of the CEO/General Manager;

- Establishment of committees;

- Integration, distribution, reorganization, sale either of Company
or of 10% of shares; or investments for an amount over 10 %,
expenses exceeding 10% of total share;

- Determination of Company's dividend policy, or profit share;

- Capital increase or decrease.

5.3 Number, Structure and Independence of Committees
Formed Within Board of Directors

Establishment of an audit Committee consisting of two members
(President- Stikrii KARATEPE, Member- ibrahim Halil CIFTCI), a
Corporate Management Committee of three members (Presi-
dent - ibrahim Halil CIFTCi, Member — Erkut AKPINAR, Member -
Ozgur SELCUK) and Early Detection Committee of Risk of two
members (President- ibrahim Halil CIFTCI, Member — Erkut
AKPINAR) are held in accordance with Communiqué on Corpo-
rate Governance, which requests this establishment in order to
fulfill the duties and responsibilities of General Assembly for
publicly traded companies.

There are six members in our Board of Directors. And Board
Members might be member of more than one committee, since
the number of members of committees related the Board of
Directors are more than the number of members of Board of
Directors, in accordance with principles stated in the CMB Corpo-
rate Governance principles and the BRSA.
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5.4 Risk Management and Internal Control Mechanism

- Internal Control:

Internal control mechanism, which is in service directly under the
Board, serves with the objective to perform controls effectively
and to develop a control system that covers risks in all areas, and
to report results periodically to the Audit Committee.

It controls whether Company's operations, systems and process-
es are carried out in accordance with regulations, management
strategies and policies and leasing practices, while carrying out a
systemic and disciplined approach regarding workflows, duties
and responsibilities of employees and taking necessary steps for
risk assessment; or prevention.

While presenting an opinion concerning development of internal
regulations and practices of Company, it provides independent
and objective assurance and consulting services in order to enrich
and improve activities, with an objective to improve Company's
corporate efficacy governance.

In order to prevent the damage that could affect achievement to
Company goals, establishment of an internal control system is
foreseen for defining, evaluation, monitoring, managing of
potential credit, market and operational risks that may affect
Company's assets and for using such results during decision
mechanism.

Internal Control Manager fulfills its duties as Exclusively Compli-
ance Officer, which ensures that necessary measures in compli-
ance with legislation of Financial Crimes Research Board are
taken; realization of supervision and establishment of communi-
cation with Board.

- Risk management:

Risk Management consists of two members elected from Board
of Directors. Directorate of Risk Management carries on its activi-
ties within the framework of national legislation and internation-
al regulations and standards through Members of Committee for
the Early Detection of Risks. Directorate of Risk Management
submits its report periodically to Committee for the Early Identifi-
cation of Risks.

5.5 The Company's Strategic Goals

The strategic goals formed by our managers are evaluated at the
end of each year and targets are approved for following year. In
addition, Board of Directors evaluate achievement to set goals.

5.6 Financial Rights

During Ordinary General Assembly meeting, on April 1, 2015, it
was decided to pay 3,150 TLs monthly to members of Board of
Directors.

There exists no other fee or other rights granted to Members of
Board. Wages and benefits for members of the Board are not
determined by their performance. Company is not insured
against damages caused by a Board Member throughout his duty
term.

Company has not given any loan or credit to any Board member;
or there exists not any warrant or guarantee such as a compensa-
tion is given in benefit of a third party or per a third party given as
a personal debt.

In accordance with Corporate Governance Principles, all other
benefits ensured by fees paid to senior executives in addition to
Members of Board of Directors are disclosed to public through
activity report. However, statement is made not on the basis of a
person, but on the basis of Board of Directors and senior manager
distinction.

Our Company has paid gross wage of 282 thousand TLs to Board
members and 849 thousand TLs to General Manager and Deputy
General Manager in 2015.

ibrahim Halil GIFTGI

Kurumsal ‘l'ﬁnyllm tesi Bagham Kurumsal Yénetim Komitesi Uyesi

Member of Corporate Governance Committee

Chairman, of Corporate Governance Committee

NA)

Kurumsal Yanetim Komitesi Uyesi
Member of Corporate Governance Committee
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DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENCY UNDER SCOPE OF THE NOTIFICA.TION
ON DETERMINATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

VAKIF LEASING INC.
ISTANBUL

HERE IS MY DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE COMMUNIQUE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

| hereby declare, acknowledge and undertake that

a) | do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty
and responsibilities within the last five years, do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or
privileged shares either jointly or solely or do not have established a significant commercial relation between the
corporation, companies on which the corporation hold control of management or significant effect and share-
holders who hold control of management of the corporation or have significant effect in the corporation and
legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, my spouse and my relatives
by blood or marriage up to second degree,

b) have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant
duty and responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the corpo-
ration purchases or sells goods or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed,
especially on audit (including tax audit, statutory audit, internal audit), rating and consulting of the corporation,
at the time period when the corporation purchases or sells services or goods,

c) have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an
independent board member,

¢) will not be serving as a full time employee at public authorities and institutions after being elected, except
being an academic member at university provided that is in compliance with the relevant legislation,

d) l am residing in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31.12.1960 and humbered 193,

e) | am capable to contribute positively to the operations of the corporation, to maintain my objectivity in
conflicts of interests between the corporation and the shareholders, have strong ethical standards, professional
reputation and experience to freely take decisions by considering the rights of the stakeholders,

f) am able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation
and duly fulfill the allocated duties,

g) | have not conducted membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years,
from Board of Directors.

h) | am not the independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations as such;
the corporation or the controlling shareholders of the corporation who hold the control of management corpo-
rations and in more than five corporations in total which are admitted to the trading on the exchange,

i) I have not been registered and announced as a board member representing a legal entity.

In case of the emergence of a condition violating this independence, | will immediately inform the board of
directors for the change to be declared to the public by me and | will resign from my duties as the member of
board of directors and others as the principle requires since | will lose independence under such circumstance.

06.03.2015 H

Ibrahim Halll GiF
Bafmmsiz ¥anatim Kadilu (yesi

Independent Me
Board of Directors




VAKIF LEASING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENCY UNDER SCOPE OF THE NOTIFICATION
ON DETERMINATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

VAKIF LEASING INC.
ISTANBUL

HERE IS MY DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE COMMUNIQUE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

| hereby declare, acknowledge and undertake that

a) | do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level to take upon significant duty
and responsibilities within the last five years, do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting rights or
privileged shares either jointly or solely or do not have established a significant commercial relation between the
corporation, companies on which the corporation hold control of management or significant effect and share-
holders who hold control of management of the corporation or have significant effect in the corporation and
legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, my spouse and my relatives
by blood or marriage up to second degree,

b) have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant
duty and responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the corpo-
ration purchases or sells goods or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed,
especially on audit (including tax audit, statutory audit, internal audit), rating and consulting of the corporation,
at the time period when the corporation purchases or sells services or goods,

c) have professional education, knowledge and experience in order to duly fulfill the duties assigned for being an
independent board member,

¢) will not be serving as a full time employee at public authorities and institutions after being elected, except
being an academic member at university provided that is in compliance with the relevant legislation,

d) I am residing in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193,

e) | am capable to contribute positively to the operations of the corporation, to maintain my objectivity in
conflicts of interests between the corporation and the shareholders, have strong ethical standards, professional
reputation and experience to freely take decisions by considering the rights of the stakeholders,

f) am able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation
and duly fulfill the allocated duties,

g) I have not conducted membership of board of directors more than a term of six years in the last ten years,
from Board of Directors.

h) I am not the independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations as such;
the corporation or the controlling shareholders of the corporation who hold the control of management corpo-
rations and in more than five corporations in total which are admitted to the trading on the exchange,

i) I have not been registered and announced as a board member representing a legal entity.

In case of the emergence of a condition violating this independence, | will immediately inform the board of
directors for the change to be declared to the public by me and | will resign from my duties as the member of
board of directors and others as the principle requires since | will lose independence under such circumstance.
06.03.2015

.50 TEPE .
Bafiimsiz Yénetim Kurulu Oyesi

Independent Member of
Board of Directors



VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

AFFILIATION REPORT - 2015

The Affiliation Report Prepared As Per Article 199 of Turkish Commercial Code

As per article 199 of Turkish Commercial Code no 6102, which was enforced in 1 July, 2012, the report on relations of Vakif Financial
Leasing Inc. and its controlling shareholder TVakiflar Bankasi T.A.O., and affiliated partnerships for the previous year of operation has been
compiled. Under frame of the information presented to our Board of Director, it has been concluded that in all the transaction conducted
between Vakif Financial Leasing Inc., and with its controlling shareholder and affiliated companies, pursuant to the conditions and terms
being known to us by the time of transaction was made, or measure was taken or refrained to be taken, a proper counter action was
performed in all transaction and that there is no measures taken or refrained to be taken, which could damage the company and thus,
there has been no transaction or measure which may be required offsetting under this frame.
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BRIEFING ON OTHER ISSUES

1.1 No amendments were made in 2015 in the capital and partnership structure or the organization chart of the Company.
1.2 The Company put new leasing software into practice in 2015.
1.3 No research and development activities were carried out during 2015.

1.4 During the financial year of 2015, a limited independent audit on June 30, 2015 and an independent audit on Decem-
ber 31, 2015 were conducted within the Company by Basaran Nas Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisa-
virlik A.S. In addition to this, as part of the corporate tax full approval, Company financial statements went through tax
auditing in three-month periods by NSR Yeminli Mali Musavirlik ve Bagimsiz Denetim A.S.

1.5 There are no ongoing lawsuits or legal proceedings that have been brought in action against the Company and may
have negative effects over the financial situation and/or operating results of the Company.

1.6 There are no administrative or juridical sanctions imposed on the company and its managing body members due to
implementations contrary to legislation provisions.
1.7 No extraordinary general meeting was held during the year.

1.8 The Company has no acquired shares of its own.

1.9 Turnover of Vakif Leasing fell by 15,53% in 2015 compared to the previous year, down from 289,848 Thousand USD to
250,894 Thousand USD. Number of transactions which was 317 in 2014 was 412 in 2015.

According to the activated agreement data, volume of transactions of Vakif Leasing amounting to 269,264 Thousand USD
in 2014 receded by 17,30% to 222,675 Thousand USD in 2015. While the number of activated agreements in 2014 was
326, it reached 388 in 2015.

The Company, aiming at disciplined growth, acted selectively in this growth in order to achieve a balanced and efficient
management over pressure of profit margin increasing as a result of the competition while making no compromises on its
strategy of creating high quality portfolio and public extension in annual transactions.

1.10 The Company’s paid-up capital as of 2015 is 65 million TLs and there are no findings or convictions that the capital is
unreciprocated and the Company is in debt.
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2015 GLOBAL ECONOMY IN THE WORLD AND TURKEY

GLOBAL ECONOMY
Moderate growth in global economy continues
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Based on the fact that the 3,4 % growth of global economy in
2014 has achieved a moderate growth performance of 3,1 % in
2015 according to the recently published World Economic
Outlook by IMF, it is expected that the global growth will increase
within 2015. In US economy, Gross Domestic Product growth rate
is revised to 2,1 % from 2 %, which is announced previously on
the third quarter of the year. Thus, US economy is expected to
complete 2015 with a growth rate of 2,6% by the end of the year.
Euro Region’s annual growth of 1,6 % in accordance with the
expectations was affected by the increase in private consumption
and public expenditures, but due to the weak course of the global
economy, exports negatively influenced the growth. While
Japanese economy experienced narrowing in four consecutive
quarters, after a limited increase of 0,7% in the second quarter of
2015, a growth of 1,6 % was achieved in the third quarter. Chinese
economy, which has an important place in the growth perfor-
mance of global economy, completed 2014 with 7, 3 % of growth.
Though the fact that the last quarter growth data is slightly above
the expectations with a rate of 6,9%, it is striking that it displayed
the slowest growth performance since the first quarter of 2009.
On the other hand, a number of measures, particularly devalua-
tion, were taken to enliven the economy in China, expected
recovery has not yet been witnessed. In this regard, it is consid-
ered that Chinese economy has some fragilities and that it contin-
ues to pose negative risk on the global growth.

Central Bank Balance Sheet Size

S000 200
000 300
3000
< ____ 200
2000
1000 —/ 100
(0] 0]
MM o o O — o ™ MmoMmost s L
- T - T - TR - T B Y O O B B O I B |
o o o o O o O O O o o oo o o
A e A I I
—A M~ 4 M~ A M~ A M~ A M~ 4 M~ A ~
o o O o o O O o O O o o o O O

. ABD ( Billion )
Euro Zone ( Billion €)
Japan (Trillion Yen, right axis )

While the implementation of expansional fiscal policy in
European and Japanese economies is pursued,

Federal Reserve of USA has taken the first step into
tightening policy.

In order to recover economies after global financial crisis,
expansionist monetary policies were implemented in devel-
oped countries such as USA, Europe and Japan. In 2014 and
2015, there had been separation of monetary policies in devel-
oped countries’ central banks. In 29 October, 2014, The Federal
Reserve (FED) ended the third round of quantitative easing
program (QE3), which began in September, 2012 and decided
to increase interests for the first time in almost last ten years in
December 2015. Interest rate in ABD was raised from the range
of 0-0,25 % to the range of 0,25-0,50% with an increase rate of
0.25. In her statement after the meeting, Fed President Janet
Yellen remarked that there might be 4 interest increases in 2016
and officially used the term “gradual” for the first time for
interest rate hikes for the upcoming periods.

In Europe, struggling with low inflation and high unemploy-
ment rates for a long time, European Central Bank (ECB)
maintains the expansionist monetary policy in order to support
the economic activity. In March 2015, ECB decided to imple-
ment a bond-buying program which monthly amounts to 60
Billion Euros and will continue until September 2016. During
the year, it was discussed that the program can be extended
and the interest rates could be reduced and at the meeting held
in December, ECB reduced the interest rate on deposits for 10
basis points from 0,20% to 0,0 % and extended the time for
asset-buying program from September 2016 to March 2017.
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Asset-purchasing quantities remained stable at 60 billion euros.
Making a statement after the meeting, ECB President Mario
Draghi explained that monetary expansion will continue until
achieving the inflation target and the bond-buying program will
be diversified through regional bonds.

In Japanese economy, expansionist policies continue to be imple-
mented in order to revive the economy. Japan Central Bank
announced that it would maintain implementing the expansion-
ist monetary policy until the inflation rate reached 2 %. Besides,
Japanese government approved 2016 financial year budget 2016
requiring high tax yield for the recovery of economy and reduc-
tion of public debt. Japanese Prime Minister Shinzo Abe invited
companies to pay high wages and increase capital expenditures in
order to overcome deflation.

Weak performance of Chinese economy in 2015 led
decision-making mechanisms to take more political steps in order
for recovering the economy. In this regard, People’s Bank of China
(POBC) resorted to a devaluation in the currency of renminbi
(yuan) and tried both to boost exports and balance the recent-
ly-accelerating capital outflows. On the other hand, negotiations
in November 2015 on including currency of Yuan in the basket of
SDR (Special Drawing Rights) described as the international
reserve assets created by IMF was positively responded and it
was decided to add Yuan to the SDR basket as the fifth currency
as of January 2016. Lastly, People’s Bank of China reduced interest
rates for the sixth time since 2014 to support economy.

Interest rate for loaning with one-year maturity was reduced to
4,35 % and one-year maturity interest rate on deposits to 1,5%.
Additionally, in October 2015 witnessing the last interest rate cut,
it was decided to make a cut of 50 basis points in reserve ratio.

Developed and developing country’s economy continued to
struggle with the deflation problem also in 2015. Unlike the other
countries implementing expansionist monetary policy, US econo-
my, which began exit strategy in 2014, remained under the 2 % of
inflation level, determined by FED as the targeted level, with 0, 5
% of inflation rate in 2014. In Euro Region, 2014 inflation rate
receded by 0, 2 % in annual basis. While this situation caused the
deflation concerns related to the Region, it is expected for the
countries to end 2015 with a more positive overall Outlook
compared to the previous year. Despite the expansionist mone-
tary policies which continue to be implemented in Japan, the
concerns related to the low inflation rate did not come to an end
also in 2015. According to IMF, the inflation rate is expected to
increase in USA, Euro Region and China, while a sharp fall in
inflation is expected in Japan.
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World economies continue to struggle with deflation.
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Oil prices experiencing fierce recessions in 2014 continued to
fall in 2015 as well. Qil prices traded at a maximum level of 66,6
dollars/barrel in May fell down to 36,5 dollars/barrel by the last
month f the year. As well as the excessive surplus on the global
basis, the fact that Organization of the Petroleum Exporting
Countries’ (OPEC) deciding not to constraint oil production
during the meeting on November 25, had an influence over the
decrease in oil prices. With the increase of downstream
pressure in oil prices after OPEC decision, inability to meet oil
production costs caused the closure of various oil wells and rigs
in USA. While the decrease in ail prices had a positive effect on
petroleum importer countries like Turkey, it negatively affected
the petroleum exporter countries like Russia. On the other
hand, both outgoing effects of OPEC decisions and Iran’s
statements that they will not constraint oil production in 2016
and even increase it if demanded cause demand-related
concerns to continue. However, the fact that growth expecta-
tion for global economy in 2016 is more positive compared to
the one for 2015 may result that the downstream pressure
caused by the demand-related concerns in ail prices will not be
felt so intensively as expected. Moreover, OPEC’s statements
that decline in oil prices will not keep going in that way and
there will be a recovery in prices within a year has raised the
expectation across the market that the organization will take
measures for prices in the forthcoming period. Therefore, it
may be possible for oil prices to follow a softer course in 2016 at
a level of 35 dollars/barrel.
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TURKISH ECONOMY

Turkish economy has grown by 4 % in the
third quarter of 2015.
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In the third quarter of 2015, Turkey’s Gross Domestic Product has
grown by 4% with fixed prices compared to the same quarter of
2014. Turkish economy, growing 2,5% in the first quarter of the
year and 3,8 % in the second quarter, has grown by 3,4%in real in
the first nine months period of 2015, compared to the same
period of 2014 and thereby it is observed that the growth in the
first nine months of 2015 accelerated compared to the first nine
months of 2014. With the current prices, Gross Domestic Product
hasincreased by 11, 1 % in the first nine months compared to the
same period of the previous year. Gross Domestic Product data
has revealed that Turkish economy displayed a higher perfor-
mance than expected in the third quarter of 2015. According the
Gross Domestic Product data, distinguished from season and
calendar effects, the growth rate increased by 1,3% in the third
quarter compared to the second quarter.

Household consumption expenditure, growing by 1,8 % in 2015
compared to the previous year and contributing 1,27 points to
the GDP growth rate, increased by 3,6% in the first three quarters
of 2015 compared to the same period of the previous year and
contributed 2,54 points to the GDP growth rate. Household
consumption expenditure, constituting 70,2 % of the GDP in the
first three quarters of 2015 had a tendency to increase in the third
quarter compared to the previous quarter. Highest contribution
in the growth in the first nine months of 2015 came from house-
hold consumption expenditures.
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Public consumption expenditure, growing by 4,7 % in 2015
compared to the previous year and contributing 0,52 points to
the GDP growth rate, increased by 5,9% in the first three
quarters of 2015 compared to the same period of the previous
year and contributed 0,62 points to the GDP growth rate.

While the public investment expenditures receded by 1,9 % in
the first nine months of 2015 compared to the same period of
2014, private sector investments increased by 4,3 %. Invest-
ment expenditures positively contributed to the total GDP
growth with a total point of 0,76. The fact that the recession in
private sector investments in the first quarter of 2015 came to
an end after the second quarter indicates that private sector
dynamism is able increase. Though a recession was recorded in
the private sector investments in the third quarter, increase in
the first two months of the year atoned for the decline in the
third one.

While exports fell by 1% in the first nine months of 2015
compared to the same period of previous year, imports
increased by 1,4% during the same period. While depreciation
of TL in 2015 compared to 2014 adversely affected exports, it
served decisively in the increase of imports. Therefore, net
exports making the largest contribution to growth in the first
nine months of 2014 negatively contributed to it in the same
period of 2015.

While the service industry had a share of 59,1% within GDP in
the first nine months of 2015, it grew by 4,4 % compared to the
same period of 2014. Highest contribution in the growth in the
first nine months of 2015 came from service industry with 2,61
points. Finance and insurance activities under the service indus-
try maintained their strong Outlook in the first quarter of the
year and grew by 10% in the first nine months compared to the
previous year and contributed to overall growth with 1,34
points. As for the agricultural industry growing by 8,9% in the
first three quarters of 2015 in comparison with the same period
of previous year, though it had a small share within the gross
domestic product, it ranked among the fastest-growing indus-
tries and thereby it brought a contribution of 0,82 points to the
GDP growth of the agricultural industry in the period in
guestion. In the agricultural industry which narrowed in 2014
due to unfavorable weather conditions such as drought,
normalization of these conditions this year and basis effect
from the last year were influential over the industry to have a
significant contribution to the growth. It was observed that the
manufacturing industry which grew by 3,5% in the first nine
months of 2014 and was one of the industries with highest
contribution showed a growth of 2,5% in 2015 compared to the
same quarter of the previous year and its contribution to the
growth decreased to some extent.



When considered in general, though real GDP data displayed a
weaker performance in the first quarter of 2015 compared to
2014, growth performance increased gradually in the second and
third quarters of the year. Thereby, Turkish economy which grew
3,4% in the first nine months of 2015 compared to 2014 had a
higher performance than expected. As well as macro-prudential
measures taken by public authorities early in 2014 to restrain
consumption had an impact on individual credit card usage and
slowdown of consumer loans, it also decreased household
consumption. Easing of macro-prudential restrictions to some
extent in the beginning of 2015 influenced the increase experi-
enced in household consumption starting from the first quarter
of 2015. In this respect, increase in household consumption
expenditures enabled 2015 growth to be higher compared to
that of 2014. Recovery in the agricultural industry which
narrowed in 2014 due to unfavorable weather conditions such as
drought, which was brought by the normalization of these condi-
tions this year and basis effect from the last year, also contributed
to the high growth of 2015. Thus, though it had a small share
within the gross domestic product, it ranked among the
fastest-growing industries. Making a good start in the last quarter
of the year and regarded as the precursor of growth, industrial
production will support growth in the last quarter of the year.
Moreover, acceleration of investments with the conclusion of
electoral uncertainty, recovery in the construction industry which
is an influential sector over many others, and the upturn
observed in exports will significantly contribute to the overall
economy in the forthcoming period. In this respect, Turkish
economy is expected to end 2016 with a growth of 4%, which is
its MITP target.

Unemployment rate of November 2014 is 10, 9 %.
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As of the September 2015, unemployment rate, according to the
data undistinguished from the seasonal effects, was 10,3% and
10,4% according to the distinguished data. Unemployment rate
reached the highest level since March 2015 with the data of
September. The case that no significant revival was observed in
the economic activity prevented the rate of unemployment to
decrease in the moderate growth environment. According to the
data distinguished from the seasonal factors, as of September
2015, an employment increase over the historical average was
achieved in agriculture, industry and service sectors.
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It is predicted that the expected increase in the growth perfor-
mance of 2016 will function to decrease unemployment. In
case that growth in the workforce particularly with the effect of
increasing women’s participation in the work force lately is
continued, it may restrict the potential decrease in the unem-
ployment rate. It is also considered that rise in minimum wage
will increase informal employment to some extent and will also
stimulate a little increase in unemployment.

Foreign trade deficit fell down to 65,5 billion dollars
on the annual basis in November 2015.

For the mentioned recovery, increase in the exports was
effective. Recession in energy imports ensured by the drop in oil
prices played a significant role in the decrease of foreign trade
deficit in January-November period in 2015. Weak domestic
demand in the same period was also influential over the reces-
sion in the foreign trade deficit. However, it was observed in the
same period that exports declined due to continuance of
economic problems in countries which are our important trade
partners and the recession in the EUR/USD parity.

Drop in energy prices and the fact that the base effect with
positive reflection over foreign trade deficit will come to an end
next year and TLs increase in value against Euro continues
indicate that recovery in the foreign trade deficit may be
reversed in 2016. An increase that can occur with the contribu-
tion of latest developments with Russia and decrease in
post-electoral uncertainties makes it possible for the recoveryin
the foreign trade deficit that has been ongoing so far to get
reversed.

2015 yilinda enflasyon kur kaynakli yiiksek seyretmistir
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With an increase of 8,81% in 2015 compared to the previous one, With the effect of the fact that positive contribution of sharp fall
inflation ended 2015 with a rate higher than the target of CBT for in energy prices to the current deficit will be restricted due to
the end of 2015. In 2015, developments in exchange rate and the base effect next year, latest developments with Russia and
food prices along with the fall in international oil prices were the increase in domestic consumption probable to occur after
determinant over inflation. While the fall in international oil decrease in post-electoral uncertainties, it is possible that recov-
prices in 2015 affected inflation downwardly, fluctuation in the ery in foreign trade may be more limited compared to 2015.
currency during the year caused an upward pressure in inflation. While CBT maintained its firm stance in monetary

Thus, inflation ended the year with a rise. In the forthcoming policies in 2015, it also signaled the steps towards
period, course of food prices as well as motion in foreign exchang- simplification in interest policy.

es may be influential over inflation. Furthermore, it seems proba-

ble that minimum wage increase of 30% in the new year will have TCMB Interest Rates (%)

an upward impact on inflation in 2016 with a point between 0,5
and 0,8. Taking all these into consideration, it is foreseen that
upstream pressures over inflation may continue in 2016 and the 9
possibility for inflation to get higher than expected by the end of 7
5
3

the year has increased.

With the influence of recovery in foreign trade, E % % % § g % E % % % % % g % § %
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annual basis in October 2015. interest rate corridor
— the average funding cost

the current account deficit (year, billion$) —— TTTTTT repo (1 week maturity)

80 - =sslEs he current account deficit (% GSYH, righ} axis)

60 - - - 10 Central Bank of Turkey (CBT), following a policy protecting the
Bl L -8 financial stability besides the price stability, continued to use
40 4 il - L j O interest and non-interest tools in combination also in 2015. At
10 4 -4 CBT’s MPC meeting in January, with a discount of 50 base
» r2 points, policy interest rate was reduced to 7,75% whereas no
0 o N oo o ' N Ig} '¢ ' N . 0 amendments made in either lower or upper range of interest
q?ﬁg’ -\S-& & .hé% 1'53 RN ,.lg."f? rate corridor. This discount in policy interest rate was especially
influenced by the expectation for inflation to recede thanks to
Annual current accounts deficit amounting to 5,9% of the Gross the falling commaodity prices, oil in the first place. During the
Domestic Product (GDP) with 46,5 billion US dollars in 2014 MPC meeting in February, CBT made discounts both in policy
receded to 38,1 billion USD in October 2015 according to the interest rate and the upper and lower band of the interest rate
12-month cumulative figures. In the recovery of current accounts corridor. Thus, CBT reduced policy interest rate to 7,5% with a
deficit in the first ten months of 2015, narrowing in the foreign decrease of 25 base points and marginal funding rate, the upper
trade deficit played a determinant role. Especially the decrease in band of the interest rate corridor to 10,75% with a decline of 50
energy imports due to the decline in oil prices significantly base points and the lower band to 7,25% with a reduction of 25
contributed to the recovery of current accounts deficit. Addition- base points. Consequently, interest rate which was 8,25% in the
ally, recession in the global trade volume was another determi- end of 2014 was reduced to 7,50% beginning from February
nant factor in the recovery of current account deficit. While 2015. During the press conference for the inflation report
foreign trade improvements in January-October 2015 compared issued by CBT in July, CBT President Erdem Bas¢i announced
to the same period of the previous year supported the narrowing that they can apply to reduction in monetary policies. In August,
of current accounts deficit, decrease in net service revenues and CBT revealed the route map to be followed during the process
increased outflow of foreign currency in income balance adverse- of normalization of global monetary policies and steps towards
ly affected the balance of current accounts. Decrease in the the simplification of monetary policies within this context.

number tourists entering the country due to the troubles
encountered in the surrounding economies was determinant
over the fall in net service revenues while increased outflow of
foreign currency in the income balance was affected by the rise in
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In this regard, CBT divided the steps to be taken into two periods
of time as pre- and post-normalization, and stated that the
interest rate corridor can be made symmetrical and narrowed
during the normalization process. On the other hand, expecta-
tions that Federal Reserve of USA (Fed) will increase interest rates
had an impact over CBT’s monetary policies. Within the scope of
the route map it published in August, CBT announced that they
will wait for Fed’s decision of interest rate increase to make any
changes in the interest rates.

In December, Fed applied to an increase of 25 base points in
interest rates and raised policy interest rate to the range of
0,25-0,50% and stated that the increase in interest rates would
gradually continue in the later period. After Fed meeting, CBT
increased the interest from 0,24% to 0,49% which it pays for
required reserves in dollars, reserve options and free accounts. At
the MPC meeting in December, CBT decided not to make any
changesin interest rates and kept them at 7,50%. Moreover, after
Fed had started increasing interest rates, CBT pointed out that
starting from January 2016, steps towards simplification can be
taken in case that the decline in the mobility of market is perma-
nent. During the meeting in December, CBT underscored once
again that for the upcoming period, decisions on monetary
policies will depend on inflation Outlook and the firm stand in
monetary policies will be maintained.

In addition to the developments in inflation, mobility in foreign
exchange and geopolitical developments will also play a signifi-
cant part in the policy to be followed by CBT in 2016. While the
Centralized administration budget balance had a surplus of 3,6
billion TL in November 2014, it had a surplus of 798 million TLs in
the same period of 2015. Thus, the centralized administration
budget balance deficit, which was 11,3 billion TRY in the first
eleven months of 2014, was reduced to 5,4 billion TLs in the same
period of 2015. While centralized administration budget expendi-
tures increased by 12,3% in 2015 compared to the previous year,
budget incomes increased by 14,2%. While 2014 centralized
administration budget rate to GDP deficit in the rate of 1, 3 % is
expected to become 1,1 % in 2015 within the scope of Medium
Term Program (2016-2018), the mentioned rate is expected to
recede to 0,7% in 2016. Additionally, it is foreseen that part
covered by the state of the minimum wage increase of 30% to
cause an additional load over the budget. Therefore, it is possible
to come across a budget deficit in 2016 higher than the MTP
target. On the other hand, non-interest surplus in the first eleven
months of 2015 increased by 23,5% compared to the same
period of previous year. It is observed that non-interest surplus,
which is important in terms of debt management and was 37, 1
billion TLs in January-November 2014, was at the level of 45,8
billion TLs in the same period of 2015.
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Budget balance had a deficit of 798 million

TRY in November 2015.
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Centralization gross debt stock was 676,3 Billion TL as of
November 2015. A part of gross debt amounting to 439,5
billion TLs were composed of debts in TL and the other
236,8-billion part was currency debts. Considering gross nation-
al product rate of the debt stock within the framework of Maas-
tricht Criteria, also called ‘EU Fiscal Rule’, it is observed that
there has been a regular decrease particularly since 2009. The
fact that the rate in question is below the Maastricht Criteria
reveals the development in fiscal policy and public administra-
tion in Turkey that took investible rating.
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Centralization Gross Debt Stock
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When the realizations in 2015 are examined, monthly average
cost of fixed income domestic borrowing in TL fell from 9,7% in
2014 to0 9,3% in January-October 2015. Average cumulative due
date of domestic borrowing which was 68,5 months in 2014, rose
to 72,9 months in 2015. On the other hand with the purpose of
diversifying debt instruments and expanding investor base, lease
certificates which were issued in 2012 for the first time and
started to be issued regularly in the domestic market from 2013
were pursued also in 2015. In this context, leasing certificates
amounting to 3,4 billion TLs in total were issued in February and
August. Within the scope of 2016 loan strategy announced by
the Undersecretariat of Treasury, it is predicted that there will be
a domestic borrowing totaling 74,9 billion TLs in 2016 and total
national debt rollover ratio will be 84,4%.
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Banking Sector

Credit growth of banking sector rose in 2015
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Increasing by 22,5% in October 2015 compared to the same
period of previous year, size of assets of Turkish banking sector
reached up to 2 trillion 348 billion TLs. Thus, the rate of the
sector’s size of assets over GDP in the third quarter of 2015 was
126,6%. Loans continued to be determinant in the asset growth
in 2015 too and share of loans in total assets preserved their
historical levels and raised up to 62,4%. Both increase in exchange
rate and reduction of measures in 2015 which were taken in
previous years by policy makers for promoting personal savings
were influential over increase rate of loans. Restriction on install-
ments by credit cards and maturity limitation in personal loans
imposed previously with the directive by Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency (BRSA) becoming effective on November 25,
were softened. This change in question will enable annual
increase rate of personal loans to rise in the upcoming period.
Annual increase rate of personal loans which was 7,3% in 2014
rose to 9,5% in October 2015. Thus, it brought annual increase
rate of total loans from 18,5% in December 2014 up to 23,9% in
October 2015. Thereby loan growth reached 1.466 billion TLs as
of October 2015. Annual increase rate of receivables in collection
(RIC) rising in the second half of 2015 receded starting from the
third quarter of the year and was 24,6% as of October 2015. In
the same period rate of loans becoming non-performing raised to
3%.

While share of loans in assets increased in 2015, share of security
portfolio in assets decreased. Share of SP in assets which was
15,1% in December 2014 fell down to 13,9% in October 2015.
Increase in currency in 2015 led annual increase rate of SP to rise
and SP increased by 10,5% up to 325,6 billion TLs in October 2015
on the annual basis. The fact that portfolio sales of foreign
investors were covered by domestic banking sector was another
reason for the rise in the annual increase rate of SP.
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Share of deposits in liabilities increased
in 2015 to some extent.
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Share of deposits, which displayed a slightly upward trend in the
third quarter of 2015, in sources of funds of banking sector was
52,7% in October 2015. Gaining momentum since the begin-
ning of 2015, increase rate of deposits accelerated further in the
last quarter and deposits recorded an increase of 22,3% by
October 2015 on the annual basis. Rise in exchange rate played
a determining role in the increase of share of deposits in
liabilities in 2015. Similarly to the situation in 2014, it was
witnessed also in 2015 that deposits centered around short
terms. Share of 1 to 3-month deposits in liabilities, which was
46,6% in December 2014, rose to 56% by October 2015.

Regarded as an alternative source of fund for the banking
sector, non-deposit sources (NDS) preserved its importance as a
balance item towards which the sector’s tendency enhanced
with the increase in cost of funding. Experiencing the highest
annual increase rate in August 2015 since April 2014, NDS also
maintained its powerful rise in October and increased by 25,6%
to 853,4 billion TLs compared to the same period of the
previous year. During the same period, share of NDS in liabilities
was 36,4%. Constantly falling starting from the end of 2014 until
July 2015, annual increase rate of equities recorded a more
accelerated rise in October and reached 14,2%. Share of
equities in total liabilities was 10,9% for the period in question.
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After the decrease experienced during 2014,
profitability recovered in 2015.

— Unearned income

net profit
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Net profit for the period decreasing throughout 2014 started to
rise again in 2015 with the contribution by the base effect and
increased by 5,7% on the annual basis in October despite the
slowdown to a degree in the third quarter. Thereby net profit for
the period was 25,1 billion TLs by October. Net interest incomes
had an influence over the increase in profitability. Net interest
incomes increased 19,5% on the annual basis in October 2015 up
to 62,8 billion TLs. Profitability ratios displayed a parallel Outlook
in 2014. Return on assets which was 1,23% in 2014 year-end was
1,21% in October 2015 while return on equity having a rate of
10,6% in 2014 was 11,1% in 2015. As for 2016, it is expected for
the profitability to display a better performance compared to
2015.
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Considering the improvement of capital adequacy ratio indicat-
ing the rate of sector’s capital over risk-weighted assets, it was
observed that, though the said ratio is above the legal limit of 8%
and the target ratio of 12%, it was in a trend of regression but
displayed an upward movement starting from October. Thereby
capital adequacy ratio (CAR) which was 16,28% at the end of
2014 was 15,3% by October 2015. Falling down of CAR since the
first quarter marks the necessity for equity accumulation that will
meet risk-weighted assets of the banks to grow further. Due to
the shift to BASEL Ill, BRSA will put new regulations into effect in
March 2016. It seems possible that these regulations will create a
downward effect over capital adequacy ratios of the banks.
Nevertheless, regulations made by BRSA on risk-weighted items
for the benefit of banks regarding consumer loans will decrease
downstream pressures over the capital adequacy ratio.

With Fed increasing interest rates starting from the last month of
2015, a source of uncertainty has been eliminated. Moreover, it
stated that interest rate increases will be gradually made in 2016.
This statement has eased the pressure over interests and
exchange rate. Increase in the exchange rate was a determinant
factor over growth of loans and thus assets of the banking sector
in 2015 and accordingly led to accelerated rises. It is expected in
2016 that a slowdown will be experienced in the annual increase
rates of loans and assets.
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Leasing sector advanced 7,637,138 USD active contract sum in 2014 to 6,364,877 USD by a %16,66 decrease in 2014. In the same period
the number of contracts was 20,302 pcs and it raised to 23,125 pcs by an increase of 13,91%.

Vakif Leasing raised its indorsement from 289,848 USD to 250,894 USD year over year by i decreasing it 15,53 % in 2015. While the
number of transaction was 317 in 2014, it became 412.

According to active contract data in Vakif Leasing, while the transaction sum was 269,264 USD in 2014, it became 222,675 USD by a17,30
% decrease in 2015. While the number of active contracts was 326 in 2014, it became 388 in 2015.

One thousand USD-Leasing Sector

Period 2014 2015 increase %
First 3-month period 1,624,885 1,477,837 -9,05
Second 3-month period 1,865,957 1,666,075 -10,71
Third 3-month period 1,920,021 1,650,160 -14,06
Fourth 3-month period 2,226,275 1,570,805 -29,44
TOTAL 7,637,138 6,364,877 -16,66
Number of contracts 20,302 23,125 13,91

One thousand USD-Vakif Leasing

Period 2014 2015 increase %
First 3-month period 75,786 72,140 -4,81
Second 3-month period 73,496 45,932 -37,50
Third 3-month period 33,356 59,350 77,93
Fourth 3-month period 86,626 45,253 -47,76
TOTAL 269,264 222,675 -17,30

326 388 19,02

Number of contracts
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Being one of the first players of the Turkish leasing sector and maintaining its pioneering role in the use, promotion and improvement of
Financial Leasing products since 1988, Vakif Leasing achieved an effective trading volume of 223 Million dollars in 2015.

Having the aim of financially mediating for SMIEs and investors in commercial segments forming the majority of its customer portfolio,
Vakif Leasing targets to increase its sectoral market share of 3,50 percent and to enhance its corporate development in a highly competi-
tive, brisk environment.

In 2015 the instrument of Sale and Lease Back had a positive impact on the trading Volume of Vakif Leasing in parallel with the sector. In
line with its sustainable objectives for the upcoming period, Vakif Leasing intends to concentrate on real-estate, heavy and construction
machinery and to continue promoting the tools becoming effective with the new law in 2016 as well.

Alternative financing options brought by the new law has earned dynamism for our company with its almost 30-year experience, sectoral
knowledge and solution-oriented employees. The instrument of “Sale and Lease Back” particularly preferred by companies in need of
capital and pursuing the goal of expanding their businesses can further increase the credibility of their balance sheets as well as strength-
ening the equity.

With its trading volume of 223 million dollars in 2015 Vakif Leasing took the 11th place among the sector and increased its assets by 25%
compared to the previous year to 1,5 Billion TLs, its leasing receivables by 22% to 1,3 Billion TLs and its equities by 36% to 144 Million TLs,
thus maintaining its growth trend.

Among our goals for 2016, a healthy growth takes the first place considering our trading volume, Turkey’s domestic market growth and
demands for commercial loans.

In order to provide on-premise service and quick response for its investors, Vakif Leasing is represented by its branches in Ankara, izmir,
Adana, Bursa, Antalya and Gebze, and plans to achieve this goal with the extension of its branch network throughout Turkey and person-
nel support.
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PRIMARY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

‘ 4

TOTAL ASSETS (THOUSAND TL)

+9%025.3

2014 1,201,561 Total assets of Vakif Leading raised to
1,505,588 with a 25,3 % increase

i when it is compared to the last year.

2012 806,909

LEASING RECEIVABLES (THOUSAND TL)

+%21.7

Total leasing receivables of
Vakif Leasing raised to 1,328,031
witha 21,7 %

increase when it is

compared to the last year.

2014 1,091,578

2012 679,586

CREDITS OBTAINED

+9%28.5

Total credits obtained of
Vakif Leasing raised to

2014 1,024,360 i
1,316,237 with a 28,5 % increase

when it is compared to

2012 604,825 the last year.

[74 Vakif | easing
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (THOUSAND TRY)

+9%36.8

Total shareholders’ equity of

Vakif Leasing became 143,644 TRY
with a +36, 8 % increase when it is
compared to the last year.

2014 104,972

2012 107,400

GROSS PROFIT/LOSS (THOUSAND TL)

+%42.0

The gross profit of Vakif Leasing
raised to 19,418 TRY

with a 42 % increase when it is
compared to the last year

2014 13,675

2012 7,122

NET PROFIT (THOUSAND TRY)

+%7/711.8

Net profit of Vakif Leasing became
(23,637) TRY with a +711,8 %
increase when it is

compared to the last year.

2014 (3,863)

2012 5,402
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PRIMARY RATIOS

‘ |

Net Rental Receivables / Assets Shareholders equity/ Liabilities

2014 0.91 2014 0.09

2012 0.84 2012 0.13

Gross non-performing loans/ Gross non-performing loans/
(Gross loans+ Gross non-performing loans) (Gross loans+ Gross non-performing loans)

2014 0.10 2014 011

2012 0.07 2012 0.08

Gross non-performing loans Net Profit/ shareholders’ equity Net profit / Assets

2014 0.11 2014 -0.04 2014 -0.003

2012 0.07 2012 0.05 2012 0.007
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PRESS STATEMENT

Jm X'2:) JCR Eurasia Rating

- > “Global Knowiedge Supported by Local Expericnce

PRESS RELEASE
Istanbul - June 08, 2015

JCR Eurasia Rating
has affirmed the credit ratings of

Vakif Finansal Klmlumn A $.and its subsldm s r.:mlduted structure

JCR Eurasla Raling has evoluated “Vakif Anansal Kiralama A5, and its subsidiory’s consolidated struchwre” in an investment grade
category and aflirmed the credit ralings of *BBB [Trk)' on the Long Term Malional Scale and "A-3 (Trk)' on the Shorl Term Malional
Scale and assigned 'Positive’ ocullooks o Malional Grodes. Addifionally, JCR Eurasia Raling has also allimed The Long Term
Internatioral Forelgn and Local Curency Ralings as ‘BBB-", Other notes and details of the ratings are given in the fable below:

Long Term International Foreign Cumency ¢ BBB-/ [Stable Oullook)
Leng Term Internalional Local Curency : BBB- / [Stable Outlock)
Leng Term National Local Rating 1 BBB (Trk) / [Positive Outlook]
Short Term International Foreign Curency ¢ A-3/ [Stable Outlook)

Short Term Intermnational Local Curency OAS S [Srable Oullook)

Shart Term Natienal Lecal Rating : A-3(Trk) / (Posdtive Outiook)
Sponsor Support r 2

Stand Alone : AB

The Turkish Leasing Seclor conlineed fo creale value o the nalional economy through the financing of machinery and equipment
Irvestments. Moreover, with reinforced representative capabillity and power brought by recent legslation, the Leadng Sector. one of the
leading sechors in the Non-Banking Fnancial Seclor has conlribubed significantly to the improverment of workdng capital and linancing of
investments of SMEs via cccelerafed fronsoction volume due to tax exermnplions infroduced in 2013 and noteworthy transaction volume of
recently developed sell & lease back products, The sector maintained its posifive outlook for the upcoming years and improved its systemic
suppart level through its comparatively low penetration level and creaion of diermnative funding chanrel for non-banking financial sector
companies through the Takasbank [stanbul Setiement and Custody Bank] Money Marke! membership regulafion, despite the probable
advense effects of volatile market condifions derved from overseas and domesiic economic and poliical developments,

Vaki Finansal Kiralama A.§. cames out its domestic operations through its headquarters and four branches and has o high complance level
to corporate govemance principles as the fist publicly raded leaing company in Turkey. The Comgany fakes odvaniage of its shatus as a
bank-related comparny in ferms of market recognition, ease of access fo funding sources, liquidity management, bomowings term, funding
costs, customer base ord occess nebwork in a Non-Banking Financial jeclor dominated by bank-affiioted companies. The Company
crealed a persistent finoncial and operational efficiency in the market through its five-year cumulative growth stonding bvolcld that of the
sechor figure. Although the equity level of the Company meets legal requirements, the inherent ilsue in bonk-offifated companies of below-
average equity kevels also hold frue for the Company due to the funding of annwal growth completely with extemal sources. The Company's
MPL rafic, excesding averages in fhe lost yeor dug 1o o significantly large non-perfomning loon that had o systemic imgact across ihe Turkish
fimancial system, mproved but maintained s above sector standing and non-performing loans level confinued to posifion obowve iis equily
level. On the other hand, while the Company's asset qualty improved, profilability ratios wene suppresed thraugh the inCreaing provisons,
Morgowver, provisions covering also collolerdized non-performing loars mifigated the probable pressure and generated a posifive
conbibufion potential on future profitabdity rafics. The Company exercising a consideralble level of fist guarter profit figure exhibits o ‘Posilive’
cutlook for upcoming pericds through the possible pasitive conbibutions of expanding branch nebwork that will reach eight via the addifion
of three new branches fo be opened in the curent year along with renewed soffware infrastructure thal will improve the operational
efftectiveness on Compary's fulure transaction volume,

It is considerad that the maojor conbroling shameholder, Vakibank T.A.5., hos the willingrness and expedence to ensure long term liquidity and
ecuity within their inoncicl capability when required and to provide efficient cperational support fo Vakel finansal Kiralama A5, In this
regord, the Comparny's Sponsor Support Grade has been affimed as (2).

Addifionally, taking into account the Company's organizational stucture, asset size, market efficiency. corporate governance practices and
frack record, we, a5 JCR Eurcsio Rafing, are of the opinion that Vakil Finansal Kirslama A.$. has reached the level of adequate experence
and faciities to manage the incumed nisks on its balance sheet regardiess of any assstance from the shareholders, provided that it maintains
the elficiency in the markel, Wilhin bl context, the Sland Alone Grade of the Compary hos been delemminad as (AB) in the JCR Evrasia
Rafing nofalion system.

For more informalion regarding the raling resulls you may visit our infermet site hitps/fwesw joren.comar or conbact our analyst Me.Gokhan
IYIGUN.

JCR EURASIA RATING
Administrative Board

Copyright © 2007 by JCR Eurnsio Ratieg. 18 Mays Mah,, 19 Mays Cod, Nove Baron Flare Mood Kot 12 $iph-ISTANBUL Telephone: +90.212, 352,56, 73 Fox: +90 (212) 352.56.75
B o excepd by g Al rights d. All informatian s been abtabaed fram sources JCR Euraiia Rating beeves to be reliabie. Howevér, JCR Furasia
mmﬂmgmﬂmmm“ﬂm . waf this injt ko JCR Ewraslo Boting rothegs are sblective and dos a5 o the credifworthiness of o
security and iiuer and not ro be considersd a recommendation to buy, hold or sl any security of to Hiur @ lean. This ratiag report has been composed within the methodelagies
registered with and certified by the SPX [CAME Copétal Morkets Board of Turkeyl, BODK [BASA Banking Aeguiation and Supervision Agency) and internationally occepted rating
principhes ond guidelives but is not by NRSRO reguwiations. hitp:/ e jorer.com.tr
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY PREPARED AND ISSUED IN TURKISH

To the Board of Directors of Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S.:
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. (the “Company”) and its subsidiary
(the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes..

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency ("BRSA") Accounting and Reporting Legislation which includes "Commu-
niqué on Uniform Chart of Accounts and Prospectus to be implemented by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies"
published in the Official Gazette numbered 28861 dated 24 December 2013 and "Regulation on Accounting Practices and Financial
Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies", communiqués, and circulars and, announcements made by BRSA
and requirements of Turkish Accounting Standards for the matters not regulated by the aforementioned legislations, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our audit was conducted in
accordance with Independent Standards on Auditing which is a component of the Turkish Auditing Standards published by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority ("POA"). Those standards require that ethical requirements are complied with
and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An independent audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on independent auditor’s professional judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud. In making those risk assessments, the independent
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An independent audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasona-
bleness of accounting estimates made by the company’s management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Opinion:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Vakif Finansal Kiralama
A.S. and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with subparagraph 4, Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102; auditor’s report on the early risk identi-
fication system and committee has been submitted to the Company’s Board of Directors on 10 February 2016.

In accordance with subparagraph 4, Article 402 of the TCC, no significant matter has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the Company’s bookkeeping activities for the period

1 January - 31 December 2015 is not in compliance with the code and provisions of the Company’s articles of association in relation to
financial reporting.

In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC; the Board of Directors submitted to us the necessary explanations and
provided required documents within the context of audit.

Additional Paragraph for Convenience Translation:

The effects of differences between accounting principles and standards explained in detail in Note 2 and accounting principles generally
accepted in countries in which the accompanying consolidated financial statements are to be distributed and International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have not been quantified in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the accom-
panying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations and changes in financial position and
cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in such countries and IFRS.

Bagaran Nas Bagimsiz Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik A.S.
a member of

Pricewaterhouse25pen : . .
C\ d Basaran Nas Bagimsiz Denetim ve
94 \ Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Musavirlik A.S.

a member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers

( eynep Uras, S

» Zeynep Uras, SMMM
Sorumlu Denett;i Partner
Istanbul, 10 Subat 2016 Istanbul, 10 February 2016
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2015
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VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Auilited Audiied

ASSETS Nato oumel P Frivepeied

T FC Tatal TL FC Taotal

L CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS amd CENTRAL BANK -
. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS (Net) - - - . .
Il Finamcial Assets Held for Trading - A A - -
12 Finamcial Aswets s Fair Valse Through Prodit or Loss B B B - -
3 Derivative Financial Assets Held for Trading . . . . . .
. BANKS 5 1.5 AT Aeix 148 1LET 14500
. RECEIVABLES FROM REVERSE REFURCHASE

AGREEMENTS - - - - - -
W AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Net) [] 4961 - A4 861 LE ] . 4850
VL FACTORING RECEIVABLES - - - - - -
&l Dniscoumted Factormg Recenvables - - -
&1l Dronistic - - -
612 Fereign - - -
613 Unearned Income (-} - - - - -
62 Oiher Factoring Becenables - - - - -
621 Domestic . . . .
622 Foreign . . . .
VIL FINANCE LOANS - - -
Tl Consumer Loans - - -
12 Credit Cards - - -
T3 Coammberckal Instalment Loass B B B = = =
VIIL LEASE RECEIVABLES T A0S 17T 1L RE0N RTIN B A 1091578
51 Receivables from Lessing Transactions 300,804 FE7501  1,394,30% 130624 2084 1071683
211 Finamcial Lease Receivables WAEN  LINA03 LA T4 394TR GhOERY 1284434
L2 Operational Lease Recsivables . . . . . .
LA Unearmed Income (-} (BLERE) (1275200  Q210A09) (65 124y (LIFE2E) (183.951)
a2 Assets o Be Leased T8 .25 (£ A 17.582 1933 19515
i3 Advances (iven for Leasmg Transactions 2,802 12,602 19,014 . 380 380
(L9 OTHER RECEIVABLES 47 n 4734 4 113 4326
X DOUETFUL RECEIVABLES T 15,180 41,218 [ 1055 3o ARST
(LA} Diwshifial Factorimg Receivahles - - - - - -
12 Dwwbifial Fmance Loans - - - - a .
105 Dunsbifial Lease Receivables A0,539 123,928 164,567 20,444 107,523 133,967
14 Specific Provisions (-) 15459y (BLTIX) (RE172) [ EEE LT (T525) {84,970
XL HEDGING DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS - - - - - -
1.1 Famr Value Hedge - - - - -
1z Cash Flow Hedge - - - - -
13 Foreign Net Investment Hedge . . . - -
XIL HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT SECURITIES (Net) - - . - -
XL SUBSIDIARIES (Net) . . . . .
XIv. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Net)
Xv. JOINT VENTURES (Net) . . - - - .
XVIL FROFERTY AND EQUIFMENT (Net) L 19,0106 . 19,006 A5 . EX ]
XVIL INTANGIRLE ASSETS (Net) L] 1,042 - 1,002 7 - 7
LA Goodwill . . . . ] .
172 Orither 1002 = 100 7 - T
XV PREPAID EXPENSES 13 113 38TI 415 ne 2800 4149
XX CURRENT FERIOD TAX ASSET o - A % = 55
XX DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 1] 20,504 - 20,504 FES L B ITA0R
AXL OTHER ASSETS | F] 41 - 41 [ - 5

SUBTOTAL S LINGSS  LSSHE LK. T TN 1,199,959
XML ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED

OFERATIONS (Net) " . . . 1,572 . 1572
ey Held for resale . . . 1412 . 1372
.z Discontinued Operations - - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS RS0 LIGGSM  LSISSER  JOLIGE  SURIHS  LI0LSEL

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 56 from an integral part of these financial statements,
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VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audiied
Curresd Perlod Previous Period
LIABILITIES Kb (31 December HIS) {31 Decembsr H014)
T FC Taotal T FC Total
L DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING 13,673 - 13,673 11,543 - 11,543
. FUNDS BORROWED 14 E PALINE  LMERIT  MLI4E TIALIG 1004308
. FACTORING FPAYABLES - . . . . -
. LEASE OBLIGATIONS . . . . .
41 Finance Lease Ohligations - - - - -
42 Operational Lease Chligations - - - . -
43 Onber - - - - -
A4 Deferred Finance Lease Expenses (=) - . . - - .
¥ DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Net) - - - - - -
11 Bills . . . . . -
51 Asset-Fracked Securities - . . - -
33 Bonds = = = = = s
VL MISCELLANEOUS PAYABLES 15 4814 M I00S 032 M5 50,853
VIL OTHER LIABILITIES 1% 6547 9311 15.86% 1,73 LN i
VIL  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR RISK
MANAGEMENT. - - - - - -
&1 Fair Value Hedges . . . - -
&2 Cash Flow Hedges - - - -
i3 Net Foreign Investment Hedges - . . - - .
X, TAXES AND DUTIES FAYABLE u (2] - 654 a7 - a7
X FROVISIONS 17 rLas - LSk IENE - IR
o1 Restructuring Reserves - - - - - -
2 Reserves For Emploves Benefits LI . L] 1B - 1N
{15 hber Provissons - - - - - .
X1 DEFERRED INCOME fi) 1,381 L4 A F1 LIT6
XL CURRENT PERIOD TAX LIABILITY L] 14 - 4 - - -

XL DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - - - - . R
XIV.  SUBDRDINATED LOANS - . . . . .
SUBTOTAL BATIS  TIAE LBELSM MASEL  THEME  10965E
XV, PAYABLES RELATED TO ASSETS FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS = = - - - -

151 Held For Salke - - - - - .
152 Discontinued Operations . . . . . .
XL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 148,044 . 143,644 104,972 . 104,972
161 Pasd-in Capanal 13 5,000 . GO0 G800 . 5,000

162 Capital Reserves 383 - 33 383 - Eiz]
1621 Share Premsums . . .

162 Share Cancellation Profis . . . . . .
1623 Onher Capital Reserves 343 . 343 343 . 343

163 Acx lated Other Comprebensive Income that will mot be Reclassified to

Profit or Loss [E RS - ([R50 {68) - (68}
164 Accunmulsted Other Comprehensive | that may he Reclassified

subsequently 1o Prafit or Loss 2478 : 2478 271 ! 271
16.5 Profit Reserves 30,873 . 36,873 40,736 . 20,736
1651 Legal Reserves 1900 - kX1 3590 - 350
65T Seahmory Reserves . E . . . .
1653 Extaordinary Reserves 32083 : 32,063 36,84 ! 30,840
1654 Onber Prafit Reserves . . . .
(L] Profit or Loss 23,637 - 1EIT (3863) - (3.863)
1660 Prior Periods ProfitToss . . . . . .
662 Cament Persod ProfivLoss 23,037 : AT (3883) ! (3.863)
16.7 Non-Contralling Inerests [Tl . 1 0] . o

TOTAL LIABLLITIES AND EQUITY SATAIS  FTANES ]& m&g T48,008 !alal

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 56 from an integral part of these financial statements,
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VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

Aumlited Audited

Current Period Priar Perbod
— OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS Hote (3 December 2008) (3] December 2014)
T FC Total TL FC Total
L IRREVOCABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - - - - -
IL. REVOCABLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - - - - - -
1. COLLATERALS RECEIVED 15 IBTI05 369,193 66208 219033 2R6233 S05. 266
v, COLLATERALS GIVEN - - - - - -
V. COMMITMENTS 13 53,551 187,917 AT AGR 17138 67423 B4, 561
L | Imevocable Commitments 12,078 17,062 20,140 14,994 0486 44,430
52 Revocable Commatments 47,473 170,855 218,328 2,144 17,937 40,081
521 Lease Commuitments 47,473 170,855 218,328 2,144 17,937 40,081
3201 Fimance Lease Commitments 4TATH 170855 218528 2.144 37957 40,051
5202 Openticnal Lewse © ] - - - - - -
L% I Cither Revocable Conmatments - - - - - -
VL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PR 91385 107,303 193,668 151,078 148,628 199,706
[ Derivative Financial Instnansents for Risk Management - - - . - -
[AN] Fair Valuwe Hedpes - - - - -
612 Cash Flow Hedges . . . - -
6.3 Net Foreign Investment Hedges . . . . . .
6.2 D e Fmancial [ Held For Trading o2 385 1), 303 193,688 151,078 148,628 09,106
621 Forward Foreign Camency PurchasesSales - - = = = =
622 Swap Purchases Salkes 92,385 101,503 193,688 151,078 148,628 P
623 Puticall options - - - - - -
624 Futures purchases/sabes -
625 Others -
VI ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY =
TOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 439,41 GSB413 109744 IETI40 501,284 BE0.513

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 56 from an integral part of these hnancial statements,
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VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH,

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT OR LOSS STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated,)

Amdised Al
Currest Period Privieus Perisd
x ity (3 Docrmmber 3015} (31 Decembir 2014)
L OFERATING INCOME 1L RL54
FACTORING INCOME - -
L1 Factoring Inferest [ncome
LIl Ducounted
112 Oiher
12 Factoning Cotmmivion knoome
121 Dispounsed
122 Onher
INCOME FROM FINANCING LOANS
1.3 Iuterest income Eom financing oo
14 Fees and commissions received from fimancing loam . -
LEASE INCOME JLIT HLI54
L5 Fmanor Lowe Income 102832 BO.TTS
Le Operationl Lease Income - =
1.7 Foes s Covmmmiissn [meom on Lease Operation 1.5t 1A%
1. FINANCING EXPENSES () (T 160 [ A ]
i lImerest Expense o Funds Borsowed (HGIE) 15,4400
22 Interest Expense on Factonng Payables = -
13 Interest Expense of Finance Lewving Expeancs
x4 Irdevest Expenss o Secmiu lanod - -
a3 Orher Intevest Expenses [1 L3 (&Y
16 Foes sl Commmmriians Pasd ] (5500
i GROSS FROFIT ¢ LOSS {1+10) A3 4% a1
W OPERATING EXPENSES i-) 1 L4818 (13,407}
4l Perionne| Expemacs [ X 55 {8.6E1)
4.2 Reserve for employee termination benediis. [LIE5] (245)
43 Drhlbpm andl Research Expemias . -
dd General adminisimiive expesses [EXE ] {4,4T8)
&5 Othera . -
¥ GROSS OPFERATING INCOMELOSS {II+V) 15418 13,678
VL OTHER OFERATING INCOME -] 3906 A0
&l Interest Income on Bank Deposits. 250 a4
62 lievest [movoese o0t Reverse Repurchine Agrecmncnts . -
61 Interest [mcome on Seomities Portiolio = 5
631  lmerest [scome on Financial Assets Held for Trading - -
632 Imh—mmelﬁmIﬁr\’nwm&wLﬁu . -
833  Imteresi [ncome on Financial Assets Available For Sale - L]
634 Irtevest Imcom on Financsal Assets Held 10 Matunny = =
LT Dividend Income . 13
&5 Tradig Aceoiind [neoine - M
651  Income From Derivative Financial Insirmments - 19
652 Oiher - -
L1 Foeegm Exclomge Gains Rl L] 617
&7 Others L] 16,343
VIL FROVISION FOR LOSSES 0N XON-FERFORMING RECEIVABLES {-) T {15,555 43,8515
VIIL  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-) b 14,05 342y
&1 Tngamscnt Losses an Secinties Poitioba .
1.1 Dpairmeni Losses on Fimancial Assets af Far Vale Theough Profii or Loss
212 lopawssst Losses on Fmancal Avets Avaalable For Sake
£1.5  lngpaimeent Losses on Fimancial Assets Held to Matarity
12 oo et Lvisees. onn Nosi-Cimiren Assets
21 Tugpairmsent Losses on Tangible Aty
222 Impaimsest Losses on Asseis Held for Sale snd Discoatmned Operations.
&823 Tt Losses on Goodwill
224 Impaimsent Losses on Other Intangible Assets
£815 Tngpawscat Losses on Sebsidarcs, Soocaileos sl Jomt Vinhies .
&3 Losses From Darmvative Financsl Instrmseas 14,5905
24 Foreign Exclhange Losues - =
&5 Other {190 (32}
. NET OPERATING PROFIT 7 LOSS (V.. 4VII) WAL #
X RCOME RESULTED FROM MERGER . .
XL CAINDLOSS 0N NET MONETARY POSITHON E -
XIL FROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATHONS BEFORE TAX (IX+X+XI) o L h] il
XL INCOME TAX EXPENSE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIINS (&) 1 R 4,738
131 Cusrest Tox Charge 1 (1K) (70
132 Deferred Tax Charge (-} (T8 {4,663)
133 Diederved Tax Benefi (<) - -
XIV.  NET PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (XIT=XIII) Bam {3,820)
XV, INCOME FROM DESOONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
151 Incame Bom Assets Flicld fa Sake
152 Gain on Sale of Associates, Subsidisries and boinily € dizd Enities
153 Dhber Tneoine Bom Disco umed Operalmis
XVL  EXFENSES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERA TIONS i-)
161 Espems on Asiets Held R ﬂk
162 Lows om Sale of Amociales. Subsidiaries and Jomily lled Extities
163 Other Expenses from Discontimmeed Operations
XVIL  PROFIT FROM MACONTINUED OFERATHONS BEFORE TAX{XV.-XVID
XVIIL  INOOME TAX EXPENSE FROM HSOONTINUED OFERATIONS () -
13,1 Cgvemt Toon Cliai g -
182 Dieferred Tax Clarge (-} .
183 Diederved Tax Benefi (=) -
XIX.  NET FROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XVIHXVIID - -
XX UNCONTROLLAELE FROFIT OR LOSS (L] 40
XXL  XNET FROFIT FOR THE PERIOD (XIV#XIX+XX) 135687 i3,863)
EARNINGS PER SHARE n LT (I OHHE)
Faenims Pos Slaee Buin Contimial Opesations o

. B

100005
Eamings Per Share Bom Disconlimmed Operations .
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The accompanying noles set out on pages 10 to 56 from an integral part of these linancial statements.
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VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Audited Audited
PROFIT/LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Current Previous
STATEMENT Period Peried
(31 December (31 December
Nuote 2015) 2014)
L CURRENT FERIOD PROFIT/LOSS 13,687 (3,863)
IL. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 15,027 (288)
.1 Ttems that will mat be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 14,916 (423)
2.1.1 Tangible Assets Revaluation Increases/Thecreases 15900 -
2.1.2 Intangible Assets Revaluation IncreasesThecreases . -
213 Employee Benefits Re-Measuring Loss/Income 17 (56) (439
214 Other Comprebensive Income that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
2.1.5 Taxes related with Comprehensive Income that will not be Reclassified to
Profit or Loss (928) 16
2.1.5.1 Cumrent Tax Income/Expense . -
2.1.52 Deferred Tax Income'Expense (928) 16
1.2 Items that may be Reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss 1 138
221 Foreign Exchange Differences for Forgign Cumency Transactions . -
122 Value Increases or Decreases on Assets Held for Sales 111 115
223 Cash Flow Hedge IncomeTosses . -
224 Met Invesiment Hedge Income/Losses - -
225 Other Comprehensive Income that may be Reclassified subsequently 1o
Profit or Loss . -
2.2.6 Taxes related with Comprehensive Income that may be Reclassified
subsequently to Profit or Loss . -
2261  Cumrent Tax Income/Expense - -
2262  Deferred Tax IncomeExpense . -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (I+1T} (*} 38,664 4151

*) Minority interests are not included.

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 56 from an integral part of these financial statements,
3
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VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Ausdited Ansdited
Current Period Prior Peried
Notes 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
A CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
L1 Operting Prafit before Changes in Opersting Assets and Lishilities 42309 58,161
1.1.1 Imtevests Received’ Leasing Income 102,143 §1.284
1.1.2 Imtevest Pasd Leasing Expense - -
1.1.3 Leasing Expeies .
114 Dividend Received - 13
1.1.5 Fees smd Commissions Received 1,864 1,479
L1& Other Incomse 20,672 12,702
117 Collections from Previously Wiitien-off Doubsfisl Receivables 823 6,639
1.1.8 Payments to Personnel and Service Suppliers (8,685) (8.57m)
.19 Tawes Faid 11 (64) 0
LLIY  Other (74,444) (45,456)
1.2 Changes in Operating Asseis and Liabilities {6606) (75.705)
1.2.1 Net {Incrense) Thecrense in Factoring Receivables = =
.21 et (Incronse) Thocronse in Finamce Laams - .
L2l Mt (lncrease)Th in Leass Revetvables (268,441) (206,876)
122 Mt (Increasek Dhocrease in Other Assets 1,167 10,413
1.23 Met Increase(Decrease) in Facioring Payables = =
.23 Met Increase’{Decrease) in Lease Paynhles = =
1.24 et I A, ) in Frmds B d 289,861 121,323
1.2.5 et Incrense’{Decrense) in Paynbles = =
126 Met Increase{Decrease) in Other Lisbilities (29,193) (565)
L Net Cash Provided from Operatisg Activities 35,703 (17.544)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 Acquasition of Investiments, Assoczabes and Subsidianes
22 Drisposal af Investments, Associstes and Subsidiancs - -
23 Puschases ol Propey and Equipasent 89,10 (1,435) -
24 Disposals af Properry asd Fequipiusent b1 2
13 Puschase of Invesinsents Availabile-for-salbe - -
2.4 Sale of I Avvailable-for-sal = =
L7 Purchase of Investment Securities Fleld 1o Maharity - -
18 Sale of Irvestment Secunities Held to Matunity - -
29 Oithix 183
1L Net Cash (Used in}Provided from levesting Activities (1.376) 185
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -
il Cash Clstanssend fromn Frachs Boarowed amd Secmtics oned - -
32 Crsh Used for Rey of Fuss B § and Securities lsued - -
EX Lasnied Cmpital nsrousnents - -
i4 Dividenids Paid = =
3.5 Payments for Finance Leases - -
6 Other - -
1. Med Cash Provided from Fimancing Activities
V. Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Bate om Cash and Cash
Equivalents 6,052 -
V. Met Imcressed| Decrease) in Cavh and Cash Equivabests 40,359 (17359
VL Cash amd Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Period k] 15,299 32658
VL. Cush and Cash Equivalents at End of the Period 3 15,299

8

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 56 from an integral part of these financial statements.



VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Current Perdod Prior Period
A1 December 2015(%) 31 Decenber 2004
L MSTRIBUTION OF CURRENT PERIGD PROFIT (=)
Ll CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT 28523 763
1.2 TAXES AND DUES PAYABLE (-) (4.844) (4.678)
1.2 Corporaie Tax (Income Tax)h (TR) -
122 Witkholding Tax - -
123 Oaher taxes and dues (4. 7646) (4,678)
A NET PERIOD PROFIT (1.1 - 1.2) 13679 (3.m5)
13 PRIOR YEARS™ LOSSES () -
14 FIRST LEGAL RESERVE (=) -
L5 OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES NEEDED TO BE KEPT IN THE COMPANY (-) -
B. DISTRIBUTABLE NET FERIOD PROFIT [(A-1341441.5)] (==) -
L& FIRST DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (=) -
Ll Ta Orwners of Ordinary Shares -
162 Ta Croners of Preferred Stacks -
L3 To Orwners of Preferred Stocks (Pre-empiive Rights) -
LG4 To Profit Sharing Bonds -
LGS To Owners of the profit Joss Shaning Centificates -
L7 DIVIDEND TO PERSONNEL (=) -
LE DIVIDEND TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (=) -
1.9 SECOND DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-} -
L Ta Orwners of Ondinary Shares -
192 To Croners of Preferred Stoacks -
193 To Cromners of Preferred Stocks (Pre-cmptive Rights) -
194 To Profit Sharing Bonds -
195 Tao Orvners of the profit /loss Shanng Certificates =
110 SECOND LEGAL RESERVE (=) =
111 STATUS RESERVES (-) -
L2 EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES -
[BE] OTHER RESERVES -
114 SPECIAL FIINDS =
IL. DISTRIBUTION FROM RESERVES
1l DISTRIBUTED RESERVES -
12 SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) -
13 SHARE TO SHAREHOLIDERS (-) -
AN To Crvners of Ordinary Shares -
212 Ta Orovners of Preferred Stocks =
213 Ta Croners of Preferred Stocks (Pre-emptive Rights) L]
234 To Profi Skanng Bonds -
133 Ta Owners of the prafit Joss Shasing Cenificates -
14 SHARE TO PERSONNEL (-) -
2.5 SHARE TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (=) =
|18 EARNINGS PER SHARE
3.1 TOOWNERS OF STOCES (TL) =
32 TO OWNERS OF STOCKS (%) -
i3 TO OWNERS OF FREFERRED STOCKS (TL) -
34 TO OWNERS OF PREFEREED STOCKS (%) =
. DIVIDESD FER SHARE
4.1 TOOWNERS OF STOCKES (TL) -
4.2 TO OWNERS OF STOCKS (%) =
4.3 TO OWNERS OF PREFEREED STOCKS (TL) =
44 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (%6 ) =
*) Profit disinbution table has been presenied on the base of non-consolidated fimancial stat ts. The Company™s General A bly has nod been held

wet and n the profit d

tabde oaly dinbutable profits has been specified.

**} Smce the company had a net boss of TL 3,863 thousand, no profil has been distnbuted.

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements
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VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

Brief history

Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi (“the Company™) was established on 15 September 1988 and
operates in accordance with “Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies Law™ published on
the Official Gazette no. 28496 dated 13 December 2012 and “Regulation on Principles for

Establishment and Operations of Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies™ of Banking
Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA™).

The Company is a subsidiary of Tirkiyve Vakiflar Bankas: Tiirk Anonim Ortaklifn (*“Vakifbank™) and
the 22.53% of the outstanding shares of the Company are publicly traded at Istanbul Stock Exchange
(“ISE"). The Company has no preferred stock.

Valaf Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetleri Limited Sirketi (“Valaf Sigorta™) was established on 3 January 1995 to
act as an insurance intermediary between Giines Sigorta Anonim Sirketi and the customers of the
Company for the insurance of the assets subject to finance lease agreements. Valaf Sigorta gives
insurance consultancy, risk management and damage controlling both in Turkey and abroad. Vakif
Sigorta also gives brokerage services between insurance and reinsurance companies. The Company
owns 84.85% of the outstanding shares of Vakif Sigorta and Valkaf Sigorta’s financial statements are
fully consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Company and Vakif
Sigorta together will be referred as “Group” in this report.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has 56 employees; 52 at the Company, 4 at Valaf Sigorta
(31 December 2014: 49 at the Company, 4 at Valaf Sigorna, in total 53).

The registered address of the Company is as follows:

Bilyiikdere Caddesi Matbuat Sokak
Gazeteciler Sitesi No:13

34394 Esentepe - Sisli

Istanbul/ Turkey

Ownership Structure

The ultimate shareholder having direct or indirect control over the shares of the Company is
Vakifbank Group. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the share capital and ownership structure of the
Company are as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Nominal Value Share Percentage Nominal Value Share Percentage
Name (TL) (%) (TL}) (%a)
Vakifbank 38,163 38.71 38,163 38.71
Giines Sigorta Anonim Sirketi 10,172 15.65 10,172 15.65
Public Shares™ 14,647 2253 14,647 22.53
Other 2018 3.11 2018 311
Paid-in capital 65,000 100.00 65,000 100.00

(*)  The ratio is calculated from the shares of the Company registered at Istanbul Takas ve Saklama Bankasi
A5, (“Takasbank™).
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis Of Presentation
2.1.1 Accounting standards

The Company prepared accompanying financial statements in accordance with to the “Regulation on
Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies™ and the “Communiqué on Uniform Chart of Accounts and Prospectus to be implemented
by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies and on Financial Statements to be
announced to Public” published in the Official Gazette dated 24 December 2013 and numbered 28861
and Turkish Accounting Standards published by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Institute (POAAS), (“TMS/TFRS”) and other regulations, communiqués, and circulars anncunced by
the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA™) (all together “the reporting standards™) in
respect of accounting and financial reporting.

The consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015 are approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue as at 10 February 2016. The General
Assembly and / or legal authoritics have the discretion of making changes in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements after their issuance.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis as
adjusted for the effects of inflation that lasted until 31 December 2004, except for the available for sale
financial assets and assets held for sale which are measured at their fair values unless reliable
measures are available.

2.1.2 Additional paragraph for convenience translation into English

The differences between accounting principles, as described in the preceding paragraphs and
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which these financial statements are to be
distributed and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS"™) have not been quantified in these
financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not intended to present the financial
position, results of operations and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in such countries and TFRS.

2.1.3 Correction of financial statements during hyperinflation period

Financial statements were subject to inflation accounting in accordance with “Turkish Accounting
Standards Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies™ (“TAS 29") until 31 December 2004,
The BRSA announced a declaration with a decision dated 28 April 2005 that hyperinflationary period
is over and inflation accounting has ceased as of | January 2005.

2.1.4 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

2.1.5 Going concern
The Company prepared its financial statements considering the going concern principal.
2.1.6 Currency used

Financial statements of the Company have been presented using the currency (functional currency) of
the cconomic environment in which the Company operates. The financial position and the results of
operations of the Company have been presented in the Turkish Lira (“TL™).
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.1.7 Critical Accounting evaluations, estimates and assumptions

Preparation of these financial statements requires estimates and judgments regarding the reported
amount of assets and liabilities or contingent assets and liabilities and reported amount of income and
expenses of the related period. Such estimates and judgements are based on the Company’s best
estimates regarding current events and transactions, however, the actual results may differ from these
estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future years affected.

In particular, information about significant arcas of estimation uncertainty and eritical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements are described in the following notes:

Allowance for impairment of lease receivables

A credit risk provision for impairment of leasing receivables is established if there is objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due. The estimates used in
evaluating the adequacy of the provision for impairment of lease receivables are based on the aging of
these receivable balances and the trend of collection performance.

Recognition of deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets can be recorded as much as the said tax benefit is probable. Amount of taxable
profits and possible tax benefits in the future is based on medium term business plan and expectations
prepared by the company. The business plan is based on rational expectations of the company under
current circumstances.

2.2, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.2.1 Comparatives and restatement of prior year financial statements

In order to enable the determination of the financial position and performance trends, the Company's
financial statements have been presented comparatively with the prior period. Reclassifications are
made on comparative figures to conform to changes in presentation of the financial statements and
major differences are explained.

The Group started disclosing the foreign currency gains and losses in net amounts during the current
year whereas presented in gross amounts in previous periods. In order to disclose the financials
correctly, required classifications are made in the income statement as at 31 December 2014.

2.2.2 Changes in accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and the prior period’s financial statements
are restated accordingly. There is no major change in the accounting policies of the Company in the
current year,

The Group decided to pursue the properties for use according to their fair values by separating the land

and buildings within the context of TAS 16 “Turkish Accounting Standard on Property, Plant and
Equipment” after changing the accounting policy as of 30 September 2015,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2.3 Change in accounting estimates and errors

The effect of a change in an accounting estimate is recognised prospectively in the period of the
change, if the change affects that period only; or the period of the change and future periods, if the
change affects both. There has not been any significant change in the accounting estimates of the
Company in the current year. Material prior year errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the
comparative amounts for the prior periods.

2.2.4 Amendments in standards and interpretations
New or Revised International Financial Reporting Standards and Applications of Amendments

The Company adopted the standards, amendments and interpretations, related to Company's activity,
published by the Public Oversight Auditing and Accounting Standards Authority (POA) which are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015,

Standards, Amendments and IFRICs applicable to 31 December 2015 year ends

- Amendment to TAS 19 regarding defined benefit plans, effective from annual periods beginning
on or after | July 2014. These narrow scope amendments apply to contributions from employees
or third partics to defined benefit plans. The objective of the amendments is to simplify the
accounting for contributions that are independent of the number of years of emplovee service,
for example, employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of

salary.

- Annual improvements 2012; effective from annual periods beginning on or after | July 2014,
These amendments include changes from the 2010-12 cycle of the annual improvements
project, that affect 7 standards:

TFRS 2, “Share-based payment’

TFRS 3, ‘Business Combinations”

TFRS &, ‘Operating segments’

TFRS 13, *Fair value measurement’

TAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and TAS 38, Intangible asscts’

Consequential amendments to TFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, TAS 37, ‘Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets’, and

. TAS 39, Financial instruments — Recognition and measurement’

- Annual improvements 2013; effective from annual periods beginning on or after | July 2014,
These amendments include changes from the 2011-12-13 eyele of the annual improvements
project, that affect 4 standards:

TFRS 1, “First time adoption’

TFRS 3, ‘Business combinations”
TFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’ and
TAS 40, “Investment property’.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

New TFRS standards, amendments and IFRICs effective after 1 January 2016

Amendment to TFRS 11, Joint arrangements’ on acquisition of an interest in a joint operation,
effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. This amendment adds new
guidance on how to account for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that constitutes
a business. The amendments specify the appropriate accounting treatment for such acquisitions,

Amendments to TAS 16 ‘Property,plant and equipment’, and TAS 41, “Agriculture’, regarding
bearer plants, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These
amendments change the financial reporting for bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber trees
and oil palms. It has been decided that bearer plants should be accounted for in the same way as
property, plant and equipment because their operation is similar to that of manufacturing.
Consequently, the amendments include them within the scope of TAS 16, instead of TAS 41.
The produce growing on bearer plants will remain within the scope of TAS 41,

Amendment to TAS 16, Property, plant and equipment' and TAS 38, 'Intangible assets', on
depreciation and amortisation, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. In this amendment the it has clarified that the use of revenue based methods to calculate
the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that
includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the consumption of the
economic benefits embodied in the asset. It is also clarified that revenue is generally presumed
to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits embodied
in an intangible asset.

TFRS 14 “Regulatory deferral accounts’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after
I January 2016, TFRS 14, ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’ permits first—time adopters to
continue to recognise amounts related to rate regulation in accordance with their previous
GAAP requirements when they adopt TFRS. However, to enhance comparability with entities
that already apply TFRS and do not recognise such amounts, the standard requires that the effect
of rate regulation must be presented separately from other items.

Amendments to TAS 27, *Separate financial statements” on the equity method, effective from
annual periods beginning on or afiter | January 2016. These amendments allow entities to use
the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in
their separate financial statements.

Amendments to TFRS 10, *Consolidated financial statements” and TAS 28, ‘Investments in
associates and joint ventures’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. These amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
those in TAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The main consequence of the amendments is that a full gain or loss is
recognised when a transaction involves a business (whether it i1s housed in a subsidiary or not).
A partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Annual improvements 2014, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. These set of amendments impacts 4 standards:

. TFRS 5, ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” regarding
methods of disposal.,

. TFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, (with consequential amendments to
TFRS 1) regarding servicing contracts.

. TAS 19, *Employee benefits” regarding discount rates.

. TAS 34, *Interim financial reporting” regarding disclosure of information.

- Amendment to TAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ on the disclosure initiative,
effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, these amendments are as
part of the JASB initiative to improvepresentation and disclosure in financial reports

- Amendment to TFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements’ and TAS 28, ‘Investments in
associates and joint ventures’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.These amendments clarify the application of the consolidation exception for investment
entities and their subsidiaries.

- TFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, effective from annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018. TFRS 15, *Revenue from contracts with customers’ is a converged
standard from the IASB and FASB on revenue recognition. The standard will improve the
financial reporting of revenue and improve comparability of the top line in financial statements
globally.

- TFRS 9 *Financial instruments’, effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. This standard replaces the guidance in TAS 39. It includes requirements on the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it also includes an expected
credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model.

Early adoption of standards
The Company did not early-adopt new or amended standards at 31 December 2015. Considering the
financial statement items of the Company, it is deemed that the prospective changes except adoption

of TFRS 9 would have no significant effect to over the financial position and performance of the
Company.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies
Consolidation principals applied:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiary on the basis set out in sections below. Financial statements of the consolidated subsidiary
are prepared as of the same date as consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that currently are exercisable are taken into
account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated interim financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Company owns 84 85% of Valaf Sigorta, As the Company has
the power to control the operations of the Valaf Sigorta, the financial statements of Valaf Sigorta have
been fully consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interest

The non-controlling interest in the net asset of the subsidiary of the Company is presented separately
in the Group’s equity. Non-controlling interest comprises the amount of those non-controlling interests
at the date of the first combination and the changes in equity since the date of the combination.

Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
translated by using year-end exchange rates of Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey's bid rates.
Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

Foreign currency exchange rates used on 31 December, 2015 and 31 December 2014 are as follows:
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

UsD 2.9076 23189
Euro 31776 2.8207

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand,

deposits at banks and highly liquid and insignificant risk of change in the value of the investments
with maturity periods of less than three months.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Financial leasing transactions
i) As lessor

Assets which are subject to leasing transactions are presented as a receivable which equals to the
investment amount made for the related leasing transactions. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a periodic constant rate of return. The
leasing payments received are deducted from the gross leasing investments by reducing the principal
and unearned finance income.

fii)  As lessee

The assets which is obtained by financial leasing is capitalized with the lower of fair value of the asset at
the beginning of the leasing period after the deduction of the tax benefits and incentive or discounted
value of minimum lease payments at the date. The principal payments of the lease are illustrated as
liability and decreases with the payments, Interest payments are reflected to income statement during the
financial leasing period. Assets obtained by the financial leasing are subject to depreciation over the useful
life of the asset.

Allowances for impairment of lease receivables

The lease receivables provision for the impairment of investments in direct finance leases is
established based on a credit review of the receivables portfolio. The Company has set this provision
in accordance with BRSA Communiqué on Procedures Regarding Provisions to be provided for Loans
of Leasing, Factoring and Consumer Finance Companies (“Provisions Communiqué”™) published in
Official Gazette No, 28861, dated 24 December 2013, According to the Communiqué, specific
provisions are set in the following proportions: minimum 20% after deducting the effect of collaterals
for lease receivables that are overdue between 151 and 240 days, minimum 50% after deducting the
effect of collaterals for lease receivables that are overdue between 240 and 365 days and 100% afier
deducting the effect of collaterals for lease receivables that are overdue for more than one year.

In accordance with the related Provisions Communiqué, the Company also recognises specific
provision even if the overdue days are less than the days stated above or receivables are not over due
at all, by taking into account all the existing data regarding the creditor and based on the principals of
reliability and prudence as indicated in the Communiqué on the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements published in Official Gazette No. 25702, dated 16 January 2005, According to
the Communiqué, the Company might not take into account the collateral amounts while determining
the specific provision mentioned above,

Afier the collection of receivables for which provision has been set aside, the provision amounts are
reversed and all of the related receivables are deducted from assets. During the collection of a
receivable related to a previous year's provisions, the related collection amount is credited to "Other
Operating Income” account as income.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Financial instruments
The Company classifies securities and accounts as “available for sale™ and “subsidiaries”™.

Investment securities are classified according to purpose of purchase and Management’s “market risk
policy™ at the time of purchase.

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of it

(i) Securities held for trading

Financial assets held for trading is the financial assets that are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges.

(i)  Investment securities available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investment securities are carried at fair value based on quoted bid prices, or
amounts derived from cash flow models on the financial statements as of the balance sheet date.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of these securities are recognised
under equity in the “Marketable Securities Valuation Reserve” account. If a non-temporary fair value
loss 1s determined, the effect of this loss is recognised in the statement of income. In case of disposal
of these securities, the accumulated fair value adjustments are transferred to statement of income.,
Investments in equity shares for which the Group has not the power to control or significant influence
are classified as available for sale financial assets in the consolidated financial statements. Available
for sale financial assets, traded in an active market or whose fair value can be reliably measured,
measured at their fair values. Available for sale financial assets, not traded in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably set are measured at cost, less impairment losses, if any in the
consolidated financial statements.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, including forward foreign exchange contracts, are initially recognised
on the balance sheet at cost including transaction costs and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The income and losses recognised in derivative transactions change according to how they are
classified. Income and losses from derivatives designated to effectively hedge cash-flow risk are
recognised as equity. The Company’s derivative transactions, even though providing effective economic
hedges under the Company’s risk management position, do not qualify for hedge accounting and are
therefore initally recognised at cost and subsequently valued at fair value. The fair value gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement.

Fair values of forward forcign exchange contracts and swap transactions arc determined based on
market rates or discounted cash flows.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Property and equipment

In the accompanying consolidated financial statements, tangible assets acquired before 1 January 2005
are measured at cost restated for the effects of inflation at 31 December 2004 less accumulated
depreciation. Tangible assets acquired after | January 2005 are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation.

The Group decided to pursue the properties for use according to their fair values by separating the land
and buildings within the context of TAS 16 “Turkish Accounting Standard on Property, Plant and
Equipment™ after changing the accounting policy as of 30 September 2015. As a result of the valuation
performed bu an independent appraisal company, revaluation difference of TL 15,105 afier deferred
tax effect is accounted under the accumulated other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss. As of 30 September 2015, the conformity between net book value that was calculated
based on the cost of properties for use and revaluated values are as follows;

31 Arahk 2015

Fair Value 19,090
Met book value calculated on cost value 3,190
Before tax revaluation differences 15,900
Calculated deferred tax liability (-) 795
Revaluation differences - net 15,105

Gains/losses arising from the disposal of the tangible assets are caleulated as the difference between
the net carrying value and the proceeds from the disposal of related tangible assets and reflected to the
consolidated statement of income of the related period.

Maintenance and repair costs incurred in the ordinary course of the business are recorded as expense.
There are no pledges, mortgages and other encumbrances on tangible assets.

Tangible asscts arc depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the related assets from the date of
acquisition or the date of installation, on a straight-line basis over the cost. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date.

The estimated useful lives of tangible assets are as follows:

Expected Useful Life

Tangible assets (Year) Depreciation Rate (%)
Buildings 50 2
Furniture and fixiure 5 20
Motor vehicles 5 20
Other tangible assets — Leaschold improvements 5 20

Intangible assets
The Group's intangible assets consist of software,

The cost of the intangible assets purchased before 1 January 2005 are restated from the purchasing
dates to 31 December 2004, the date the hyperinflationary period is considered to be ended. The
intangible assets purchased afier this date are recorded at their historical costs.

The intangible assets are amortized based on straight line amortization method.

19



VAKIF LERSING

ACTIVITY REPORT / 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH, SEE IN NOTE 2

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Assets held for resale

The assets providing the necessary conditions of being classified as the assets held for resale are
recognized with the lower of their book value and fair value less cost of sales. These assets are
presented separately on the balance sheet and are not subjected to depreciation following the
classification. To classify an asset as asset held for resale, the sale potential of the asset (or the asset
group to be disposed) should be high and the asset should be available to immediately sell under
ordinary circumstances in sale of this kind of assets. To have high sale potential, there should be a
proper scheme for sale of the asset {or asset group to be disposed) which is prepared by a proper
administrative level and an active sales program should be launched to complement the scheme and
determine the buyers. Furthermore, the asset should be marketed actively with a price coherent to its
fair value. Various incidents and conditions may extend the completion of the sale term to more than a
year. The asset is remained to be classified as the asset held for resale, if the reason of the delay is the
incidents and conditions out of the control of the firm, and there is no sufficient evidence that the firm
is continuing its sales program of the asset.

The impairment losses and profit and loss from subsequent valuation of the assets classified as the
assets held for resale are recognized on consolidated income statement.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or group of assets (the “cash -generating unit™).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income,

Employee benefits

In accordance with existing Turkish Labour Law, the Group is required to make lump-sum termination
indemnities to cach employee who has completed one year of service with the Group and whose
employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than resignation or misconduct. The
computation of the liability is based upon the retirement pay ceiling announced by the Government.
The applicable ceiling amount as at 31 December 2015 is TL 4,092.53 full TL) (31 December 2014:
TL 3,541.37 ( (full TL)). The Group provided reserve for employee severance indemnitics in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements using actuarial method in compliance with the TAS
19 — Employee Benefits.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the actuarial assumptions are as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Discount rate %2.89 %1.97
Expected rate of salary/ceiling increase %7.10 Y650
Estimated employee turnover rate %l 86 %3.77

Expected rate of salary/ceiling increase is determined based on inflation estimates of the government.
The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase in line
with inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future inflation.

The Group has provided reserve for short-term employee benefits in the financial period as per
services rendered in compliance with TAS 19 — Employee Benefits in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

According to the TAS 19 that is revised by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Authority with the Communiqué published in Official Gazette on 12 March 2013 numbered 28585, in
the calculation of the employment termination benefit liabilities of the Company, the recognition
method of the actuarial gains and losses derived from the changes in actuarial assumptions or the
differences between actuarial assumptions and realizations in the income statement has been
eliminated which is effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Beginning
of | January 2013, the Company has recognised the actuarial gains and losses that occur in related
reporting periods in the “Statement of Comprehensive Income™ and presented in the “Extraordinary
reserves” item in the Equity section of the financial statements,

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

In the consolidated financial statements, a provision is made for an existing liability resulted from past
events if it is probable that the liability will be settled and a reliable estimate can be made for the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are calculated based on the best estimates of management on the
expenses to incur as at the balance sheet date and, if material, such expenses are discounted to their
present values. If the amount is not reliably estimated and there is no probability of cash outflow from
the Group to settle the liability, the related liability is considered as “contingent™ and disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

A contingent assct is a possible assct that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in consolidated financial
statements. Contingent assels are assessed continuously to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements of the period in which the change occurs. If an inflow of economic benefits has
become probable, the Group discloses the contingent asset in the accompanying consolidated financial
statcments,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Income and expense recognition

Finance lease income

The values of the assets leased within the context of Financial Lease Law are shown as finance lease
receivables on balance sheet at their value determined at the beginning of the leasing transaction, The
interest income generated by the difference between total finance lease receivable and the investment
value of the asset subject to leasing is recorded to the income statement of the period by means of
distribution of the receivables with fixed interest rate to the related periods. The interest income not
accrued in relevant period is followed under unearmed interest income.

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognized according to the effective interest method based on
accrual basis. Effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the expected cash flows of financial
assets or liabilities during their lifetimes to their carrying values. Effective interest rate is caleulated
when a financial asset or a liability is initially recorded and is not modified thereafter,

The computation of effective interest rate comprises discounts and premiums, fees and commissions
paid or received and transaction costs, which are indispensable parts of effective interest. Transaction
costs are additional costs that are directly related to the acquisition or disposal of financial assets or
liabilities.

Fees and commissions

The fees and commissions received from and paid due to finance lease operations are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income when the related service is rendered or received.

Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive payment is ascertained.
Other income and expenses

Other income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Taxation
Corporate taxes

Taxable income is subject to corporate tax at 20%. This rate is applied to net income modified for
certain exemptions (like dividend income) and deductions (like investment incentives), and additions
for certain non-tax deductible expenses and allowances for tax purposes. If there is no dividend
distribution planned, no further tax charges are made.

Withholding tax rate on dividend payments, which are made to the companies except those are
domilicied in Turkey or generate income in Turkey via a business or a regular agent, is 15%. In
applying the withholding tax rates on dividend payments to the non-resident institutions and the
individuals, the withholding tax rates covered in the related Double Tax Treaty Agreements are taken
into account. Appropriation of the retained earnings to capital is not considered as profit distribution
and therefore is not subject to withholding tax.

The prepaid taxes are caleulated and paid at the rates valid for the earnings of the related years. The
payments can be deducted from the annual corporate tax calculated for the whole year camings.

Under the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward up to five years. As at
31 December 2015, the Group has no deductible tax losses (31 December 2014: no deductible tax
losses).

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies
file their tax returns until the end of the 25" day of the 4™ month following the close of the accounting
year to which they relate. Tax returns are open for five years from the beginning of the year that
follows the date of filing during which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and
the related accounting records on which they are based, and may issue re-assessments based on their
findings.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized, in accordance with TAS 12- fncome Taxes, on all
taxable temporary differences arising between the carrying values of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their corresponding balances considered in the calculation of the tax base,
except for the differences not deductible for tax purposes and initial recognition of assets and
liabilities which affect neither accounting nor taxable profit.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are reported as net in the consolidated financial statements only
if the Group has legal right to present the net value of current year tax assets and current year tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are income taxes of the same taxable
entity.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Transfer pricing

In Turkey, the transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax Law
with the heading of “disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing”. The General Communiqué on
disguised profit distribution via Transfer Pricing, dated 18 November 2007 sets details about
implementation,

According to the Communiqué, if a taxpayer enters into transactions regarding sale or purchase of
goods and services with related parties, where the prices are not set in accordance with arm's length
principle, then related profits are considered to be distributed in a disguised manner through transfer
pricing. Such disguised profit distributions through transfer pricing are not accepted as tax deductible
for corporate income tax purposes,

Investment incentive

As per the provisional 69th article which is added to the 193 numbered Income Tax Law by 5479
numbered Law that is published on 8 April 2006 dated and 26133 numbered Official Gazette and
became effective since | January 2006, tax payers could deduct investment incentives calculated
according to the legislation provisions (including tax rate related provisions) in force as at
31 December 2005, only from the taxable income of the years 2006, 2007, and 2008, In this context,
income and corporate taxpayers could deduct the following items only from the taxable income of
2006, 2007, and 2008;

l1-  The carried forward investment incentive exemptions, which could not be deducted from 2005
revenue and available as at 31 December 2005,

2-  For the investments, which made in the scope of investment incentive certificates drawn upon
taxpayer’s application before 24 April 2003 and started within the frame of 193 numbered
Income Tax Law’'s additional 1, 2,3 4.5 and 6th articles - later repealed by 4842 numbered law-
the amounts that realized in the scope of certificate afier the date 1 January 2006,

3-  Within the frame of Article 19 of 193 numbered Law which repealed 5479 numbered Law,
investment expenditures incurred after 1 January 2006 will be deductible only from the profits
of years 2006, 2007 and 2008 provided that they are economically and technically integral parts
of the investment started before | January 2006,

In this frame the rights of tax payers who could not deduct investment incentives fully or partially duc
to insufficient taxable income during those years, are abrogated as at 31 December 2008, According to
this regulation limiting the right to deduect the investment expenditure from taxable profit, investment
incentive exemption will be applied to the taxable profit of 2008 at the latest. Investment incentive
exemption amount which could not be deducted due to lack of taxable profit till the end of 2009 is not
possible to be deducted from the taxable profit of 2009 and subsequent years. Meanwhile, this
exemption amount cannot be recorded as expense in the tax books.

In accordance with the decision taken by the Turkish Constitutional Court on 15 October 2009, “2006,
2007 and 2008 clause of the provisional Article no. 69 of Income Tax Law mentioned above, is
repealed and time limitation for the use of investment incentive is removed. The repeal related to
investment incentive is enacted and issued in the 8 January 2010 dated and 27456 numbered Official
Gazette.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accordingly, investment incentive amounts carried forward to 2006 due to lack of taxable profit and
the other investment incentive amounts which arising from investments prior to 2006 and on goes after
this date in the context of economic and technical integrity can be applied for not only 2006, 2007 and
2008 but also in subsequent years. Accordingly, the Group will be able to deduct its remaining
investment incentives from taxable profit in the future without any time limitation,

Pursuant to the 6009 numbered Law published on | August 2010 dated and 27659 numbered Official
Gazette and became effective accordingly, the amount of investment incentive exemption which is
deducted from income to estimate the tax base cannot be more than 25% of the income, and the
remaining income will be subject to income tax at the prevailing tax rate. In accordance with this law
and Constitutional Court decision there is no time limitation in using investment incentive amount
carried forward from year 2005 but the amount could not be more than 25% of income.

The clause “The amount which to be deducted as investment incentive to estimate tax base cannot
exceed 25% of related income™ which has been added to first clause of the temporary 69th article of
Law No: 193 with the 5th article of Law No: 6009 on Amendments to Income Tax Law and Some
Other Laws and Decree Laws has been abrogated with the decisions no: E.2010/93 and K.2012/20 on
9 February 2012,

Related party

In accordance with TAS 24 — Refated Party Disclosures shareholders, key management and board
members, in each case together with companies controlled by or affiliated with them, and associated
companies are considered and referred to as related parties. Related party transactions consist of the
transfer of the assets and liabilities between related parties by a price or free of charge.

For the purpose of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, sharcholders of the Company
the companics controlled by/associated with them, key management and the Board members of the
Company are referred to as related parties.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statements of income is determined by dividing the profit
attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the period concemned. In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making
a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus shares™) to existing sharcholders from retained carnings to
sharcholders® cquity. For the purpose of carnings per share computations, the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares issued
without a corresponding change in resources by giving them retroactive effect for the period in which
they were issued and for each carlier period (Note 21).
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Subsequent events

Subsequent events means the events occurred between the reporting date and the authorization date for
the announcement of the financial statements. In accordance with TAS 10 - Events Afier the Balance
Sheet Date, post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Group's position
at the balance sheet dates (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Post- balance sheet events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material,

Statement of cash flows

The Group prepares consolidated statement of cash flows to inform the users of the consolidated
financial statements about the changes in its net assets, its consolidated financial structure and its
ability to affect the amount and timing of its consolidated cash flows with respect to changing external
conditions.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated cash flows of the period are reported with a
classification based on operating, investing and financing activities. Consolidated cash flows from
operating activities represent cash flows from activities within the scope of business. Consolidated
cash flows relating to invesiment activities represent cash flows used and generated from investment
activities (fixed investments and financial investments). Consolidated cash flows relating to financing
activities represent the sources of financing the Group used and the repayments of these sources.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, for the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents are presented below:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Banks 55,658 15,300
Interest accruals on bank deposits - (1)

Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of cash flows 55,658 15,299

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other segments and whose operation results are regularly reviewed by Board of
Direetors.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business as all the group entities operate in
one geographical area, Turkey. The Group’s primary format for segment reporting is based on
business segments. The business segments are determined based on the Group’s management and
internal reporting structure.
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3 -SEGMENT REPORTING
Business Segments
The Group comprises of two main business segments,

. Finance lease includes the Group's finance lease operations.
. Insurance includes the Group's insurance brokerage operations.

Finance Insurance  Consolidation

31 December 2015 Lease Brokage Adjustments Total
Finance lease income 104,696 - - 104,696
Insurance brokerage service income - 1,229 - 1,229
Total segment revenue 104,696 1,229 - 105,925
Net operating profit 28,371 347 (195) 28,523
Income taxes (4,776) (68) - (4,844)
Net profit for the year 23,595 279 (195) 23,679
Specific provisions for loans

and receivables under follow up {15,559) - - (15,559)
Depreciation and amortization (667) - - (66T)

Finance Insurance Consolidation

31 December 2014 Lease Brokage Adjustments Total
Finance lease income 21,031 - - 81,031
Insurance brokerage service income - 1,223 - 1,223
Total segment revenue 81,031 1,223 - 82,254
Net operating profit T63 323 (175) 911
Income taxes {4,678) (55) - (4,733)
Net profit for the year {3,915) 268 (175) (3,822)
Specific provisions for loans

and receivables under follow up 43 831 - - 43 831
Depreciation and amortization (264) - - {264)
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3 - SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December2014 the Group's segment assets, segment liabilities and
capital expenditures are as follows:

Finance Insurance Consolidation
31 December 2015 Lease Brokage Adjustments Total
Other Information
Segment asscts 1,505,270 4,121 {3,802) 1,505,588
Segment liabilities 1,362,230 3,408 (3.694) 1,361,944
Capital expenditures - - - -
Finance Insurance Consolidation
31 December 2014 Lease Brokage Adjustments Total
Other Information
Segment asscts 1,197 652 4 748 (839) 1,201,561
Segment liabilities 1,093,254 4,067 (732) 1,096,589

Capital expenditures - - - -
Capital expenditures of the segments comprise of the acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets in
the related periods.

4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANKS

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of bank balances are as follow:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Banks 55,658 15,300
Demand deposit 55,658 777
Time deposit - 14,523

Total 55,658 15,300

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no time deposits.
As at 31 December 2014, time deposits consist of bank placements with maturity less than three

months and with interest rates average 7.6% for TL. Group do not have foreign currency time
deposits.
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5- AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, available for sale financial assets are as follow:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Carrying Carrying

Value Share (%) Value Share (%)
Not Traded at Stock Market:
Vakif Faktoring AS. 3,009 379 3,160 3.79
WValkaf Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret AS. 1,735 3.27 1,490 3.27
Vakif Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S. 217 0.25 200 0.25
Total Available for Sale 4,961 4,850

6 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES

The details of finance lease receivables are presented below:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
TL FC TL FC
Lease receivables 390,648 1,106,366 203,722 953,199
Invoiced lease receivables 3,045 8,655 2,030 6,684
Subtotal 393,693 1,115,021 295,752 959,883
Unearned interest income (82,889) (127,520) (65,124) (118,828)
Leasing contracts in progress 7.358 7.354 17,582 1,933
Advances given for lease transactions 2,402 12,612 - 380
Finance lease receivables, net of
unearned income 320,564 1,007,467 248,210 843,368
Impaired lease receivables 40,639 123,928 26,444 107,523
Specific provision (15,459) (82,713) (14,445) (70,525)
Impaired lease receivables, net 25,180 41,215 11,999 36,998
Finance lease receivables, net 345,744 1,048,652 260,209 880,366
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6 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Prospective aging analysis of the neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired lease
receivables is as follows:

Uptol 4 year
31 December 2015 vear 1-2year 2-3 year 3-4 vear and over Total
Lease receivables 546,614 391,342 285501 177,166 137,817 1,538,440
Uneamed interest income (91,635) (59,2300 (33.854) (16,634) (9,056) (210,409
Finance lease receivables, Net 454979 332,112 251,647 160,532 128,761 1,328,031
Uptol 4 year
31 December 2014 vear 1-2vyear 2-3vear 3-dvear andover Total
Lease receivables 450,176 33516 226,624 146,244 138,970 1,275,530
Uneamed interest income (779 (30,567) (29900 {15,107y (11,199)  (183,952)
Finance lease receivables, Net 372,997 262,949 196,724 131,137 127,771 1,091,578

As of 31 December 2015, the average compounded interest rates for finance lease receivables are
%1585 for TL, %7.92 for USD and %5.26 for EUR (31 December 2014: %14.67, %830 for USD and
%5.84 for EUR).

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the aging of the lease receivables and related specific provisions
are as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Meither past due nor impaired 1,286,605 1,062 969
Past due but not impaired 11,700 8714
Impairment 164 567 133,967
Allowances for impairment (98,172) (84,970)
Finance lease receivables, net 1,364,700 1,120,680

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

151-240 days 24 558 8474
241-1 year 5,392 16,046
| year and over 134,617 109,447
Impaired lease receivables, net 164,567 133,967
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6 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, details of the impaired lease receivables and related specific
provisions are as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
TP YP TP YP
Impaired lease receivables 40,639 123,928 26,444 107,523
Specific provisions (15.459) (82.713) (14.445) (70,525)
Impaired lease receivables, net 25,180 41,215 11,999 36,998

The movement of the specific provision during the year is as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Balances at the beginning of the year 84,970 47,780
Provision for the year 15,559 43 831

Collections during the year (823) (6,639)
Finance lease receivables written off during the year (1,534) {2)
Specific provisions at the end of the year 98,172 84,970

The details of collaterals taken for finance lease receivables that have specific provisions are as
follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Mortgage 44,588 31,134
Cash blockages 15278 6,787
Notes received 747 162
Total collateral 60,613 38,083

The group reviews any change in credit quality related to receivables from the date it is created to the
balance sheet date in order to decide whether the receivable can be collected or not. Since the Group
has many customers, credit risk concentration of the Group is not at a significant level. Sectoral
distribution of the finance lease receivables is presented in Note 24,
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7 - TANGIBLE ASSETS
Movement in tangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 2015 is as follows:
1 January 2015 Additions™ Disposals 31 December 2015

Cost:

Buildings 4,074 15,900 - 19,974

Furniture and fixture 737 154 (7) RE4

Motor vehicles 769 - (287) 482

Other tangible assets

(inc. leasehold improvements ) 115 - - 115
5,695 16,054 (294) 21,455

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings (838) (255) - (1,093)

Furniture and fixture (621) (B5) 7 (699)

Motor vehicles (597) (83) 228 (452)

Other tangible assets

(inc. leaschold improvements) (115) - - {115)
(2,171) (423) 235 (2,359)

Net Book Value 3,524 19,096

"} The balance consists ol the revaluation dilTerence of the properties for use,

Movement in tangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 2014 is as follows:
1 January 2014 Additions Disposals 31 December 2014

Cosi:

Buildings 4,074 - - 4,074

Furniture and fixture 739 - (2) 737

Motor vehicles 769 - - 769

Other tangible asscts

(inc. leasehold improvements ) 115 - - 115
5,697 - (2) 5,695

Accumnlated depreciation:

Buildings (756) (82) - (838)

Furniture and fixtre (547) (76) 2 (621)

Maotor vehicles (500) (97) - (597)

Other tangible assets

(inc. leaschold improvements) (115) - - (115)
(1,918) (255) 2 (2,171)

Net Book Value 3,779 3,524

As 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, there is no mortgage on the tangible assets of the
Group.

As of 31 December 2015, total insurance coverage for tangible assets of the Group is TL 11,428
(31 December 2014: TL 9,927 TL).
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8 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Movement in intangible assets in the period from 1 January to 31 December 20135 is as follows:

1 January 2015 Additions Disposals 31 December 2015

Cost:

Software 392 1,281 - 1,673
392 1,281 - 1,673

Accumulated amortization:

Software (385) (286) o (671)
{385) (286) - (671)

Net book value 7 1,002

Movement in intangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 2014 is as follows:

1 January 2014 Additions Disposals 31 December 2014

Cost:

Software 392 - = 392
392 - - 392

Accumulated amortization:

Software (378) (7 - (385)
(378) (7) - (385)

Net book value 14 7

9 - ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group’s assets held for resale are composed of
movables and immovable that arc added to asscts as a result of legal proceedings with regard to
impaired leasce receivables are detailed below:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Lands and buildings held for sale - 1,572

Total - 1,572
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10 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Corporate tax provision 14 -
14 -

VAT payable 407 292
Social Security Premiums 139 119
Income tax 105 94
Stamp tax 3 12
654 517

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Corporate taxes payable 78 70
Less: Prepaid taxes (64) (70)
Current income tax liabilities, net 14 -

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Tax expense

Corporate tax expense for the period (78) (70)

Deferred tax income/ (expense) effect (4,766) (4.663)
(4.844) (4,733)

Reconciliation of current period tax expense to theoretical tax expense of the Group caleulated by

using the statutory tax rate:

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Profit before taxes 28,523 911
Theoretical tax expense with 20% tax rate (5,705) {182)
Utilised investment incentive 847 1,350
Mon-deductible expenses (25) (5,932)
Tax-free income 39 38
Other - (7
Current year tax expense (4,844) (4,733)
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10 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Deferred taxes

The Company calculates and accounts for deferred income taxes for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in these financial statements
in accordance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Income Taxes™ (“TAS 12). In the deferred tax
calculation, the enacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation, is used as of the balance sheet
date.

As mentioned above, as of 31 December 2015, the Company’s management recorded deferred tax
asset amounting to TL 220,278 from unused investiment according to constitutional court decision.
(31 December 2014: TL 248,780)

Details of cumulative temporary differences and the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
calculated by using the effective tax rates are summarised below:

Total

— Deferred tax assets!
Temporary differences (liabilities)
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014
Lease Asset Receivable Impairment 53,605 41,566 10,721 8313
Unused investment incentives- without stoppage 46,748 84,422 9,350 16,884
Derivatives discounts 13,673 11,543 2,735 2,300
Unused investment incentives- with stoppage 173,530 164,358 347 329
Provision for emplovee termination benefit 1.617 1,376 323 275
Provision for unused vacations LI71 1,082 234 216
Orther short term employee benelils 441 362 2y T2
Deferred tax assets 23,798 28,398
Finance lease income accruals (5,636) (4,667) (1,127 (933)
Tangible and intengible assets

revaluation difference (15,9007 - (795)

Subsidary revaluation fund (2,821) - (141) -
Others (1,154) (1,335) (231) (267)
Dreferred tax liabilities (2,294) (1,200)
Deferred tax assets, (net) 21,504 27,198

The movement for deferred tax assets is as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

1 January 27,198 31,845
Current year deferred tax income/ expense {4,766) (4.663)
Deferred tax in Equity income/expense (928) 16
31 December 21,504 27,198
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11 - OTHER ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of other assets are as follows:

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

TL FC TL FC
Others 41 - 5 -
Total other assets 41 - 5 -

12 - PREPAID EXPENSES

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

TL FC TL FC
Letter of guarantee and commissions - 3871 - 3,920
Insurance 35 - 42 -
IT expenses 6 - 7 -
Subscription expenses 5 - 5 -
Others 209 - 175 -
Total other assets 255 3,871 229 3,920

13 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

As at 31 December 2015, derivative financial liabilities held for trading purpose amounting to
TL 13,673 is comprised of negative fair value difference of the currency swap of the Group
(31 December 2014: 11,543 TL).

14 - BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of the borrowings are as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

TL FC TL FC
Domestic banks 348,979 184,003 3L 146 124686
Foreign banks 10,032 773,223 - 588,528
Total Borrowings 359,011 957,226 311,146 713,214
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14 - BORROWINGS (Continued)

Carrving value
Amount in Average
original interest Uptad 3 months to Over
31 December 2005 currencies rates(%a) months 1 vear 1 year Total
Borrowings from domestic hanks:
Fived rate borrowings:
TL 348979 6,77 244 819 91,785 12,375 348,979
USD (thousand) 25,546 390 29,608 44,670 - 74,278
EUR (thousand) 30,340 235 - 64,633 31,776 96,409
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 4,191 233 - 4,440 8,876 13,316
Total borrowing from domestic banks 274427 205,528 53,027 532,982
Borrowings from foreign banks
Fived rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 158,707 386 53914 188241 262,152 304,307
USD (thousand) £3,080 430 44,965 150,077 46,522 241,564
TL 10,032 16.60 10,032 - - 10,032
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 8,608 2.05 1,519 4,904 20,929 27,352
Total borrowings from forcign banks 110,430 343,222 319,603 783,255
Total borvowings 384,857 548,750 382,630 1,316,237
Carrving value
Amount in Average
original interest Uptod 3 months to Over
31 December 2014 currencies rates(%) months 1 year 1 year Total
Borrowings from domestic banks:
Fived rate borrowings:
TL 311,146 10,96 117,312 97,082 96,752 311,146
USD (thousand) 35,748 3Th 12,242 12,774 57973 82,989
EUR (thousand) 9,195 4,75 - 11,832 14,104 25936
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 3,587 2.33 - 3,942 11,819 15,761
Total borrowing frem domestic banks 129,554 125,630 180,648 435,832
Borrowings from foreign banks
Fived rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 130,699 393 ERE 2,250 362417 36K 664
USD (thousand) £2,735 4.34 1,080 1,693 189,082 191,855
Floating rate barrowings:
EUR (thousand) 9,930 2.14 1,237 4,238 22,534 28,009
Total borrowings from foreign banks 6,314 B,181 574,033 5BR,528
Total borrowings 135,868 133,811 754,681 1,024,360
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15 - MISCELLANEOUS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of miscellaneous payables are as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
TL FC TL FC
Payables to suppliers for
financial lease operations - 5,240 7.939 18,066
Other trade payables 4,350 - 3,799 -
Provisions for suppliers for financial
lease operations (*) 464 - 8,624 12,524
Total miscellaneous payables 4,814 5.240 20,362 30,590
) Provisions for suppliers for financial lease operations consist of provisions for the finance lease contracts

which invoices have not been reccived. The amounts in this account are transferred to finance lease
payables account when the invoices of the goods that are subject to finance lease transactions are
received,

16 - OTHER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of other liabilities are as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
TL FC TL FC
Advances received 6,547 9322 1,733 3388
Total other liabilities 6,547 9322 1,733 3 388

Advances received consist of rent advances received from the customers in respect to financial lease
contracts for the machinery and equipment that are not delivered to the customers.
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17 - PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of provisions for liabilities and charges are
as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

TL FC TL FC

Reserve for employee benefits 3,229 - 2,820 -

Reserve for employee termination benefit IR - 1,376 -

Provision for unused vacations 1171 - 1,082 -

Reserve for bonuses 302 - 244 -

Provisions for other emplovee rights 139 - 118 -
Total provisions 3,229 2,820

Movement of reserve for employee termination benefits during the period is as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

At the beginning of the year 1,375 1,186
Interest rate cost 151 130
Service cost 164 119
Payments during the year (129) {498)
Actuarial difference (*) 56 439
At the end of the year 1,617 1.376

™ Actuarial (loss)/profit is accounted under other comprehensive income since 1 January 2013,
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18 - EQUITY
Share capital

As at 31 December 2015, the share in capital of the Company amounts to TL 65,000 and composed of
6.500.000.000 shares with a face value of TL 0.01 each (31 December 2014: capital shares TL 65,000,
nominal value: 6.500,000,000),

As at 31 December 2015 and 31December 2014, the share capital and ownership structure of the
Company is as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Amount of Share Amount of Share
Share(TL) Percentage(%) Share(TL) Percentage(%)
Vakifbank 38,163 58.71 38,163 58.71
Giines Sigorta A.$ 10,172 15.65 10,172 15.65
Publicly traded (*) 14,647 22.53 14,647 22,53
Other 2,018 3.11 2,018 ENN|
Pain-in capital 65,000 100 65,000 100

(*)  The ratio is calculated from the shares of the Company registered at Takashank.
Capital reserves

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, capital reserves amounted to TL 353 consists of
inflation adjustment differences of paid-in capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, revaluation difference on tangible asscts amounting to TL 15,105
(31 December 2014: None) is accounted directly in equity. As at 31 December 2015 the marketable
securities valuation differences amounts to TL 2,678 (31 December 2014: 2,711 TL).

Profit reserves

As at 31 December 20135, profit reserves of the Group consists of first legal reserves amounting to
TL 3910 (31 December 2014: TL 3,890) and extraordinary reserves amounting to TL 32,963
(31 December 2014: TL 36,846).

Profit distribution

Retained camings as per the statutory financial statements other than legal reserves are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below:

According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves.
Primary reserves are 5% of statutory net profit until it reaches 20% of the Company’s share capital.
Secondary reserves are 10% of profit distributed in excess of 5% of share capital. According to the
Turkish Commercial Code, as long as legal reserves do not exceed 30% of share capital, they can be
used to offset losses but cannot be used in any other way.

At the Annual General Assembly held on 1 April 2015, duc to the 2014 year-end consolidated loss
amounting TL 3,863, it was decided not to exccute profit distribution and to transfer the
unconsolidated loss amounting to TL 3,915 to extraordinary reserves.
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19 - OPERATING EXPENSES

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, general administrative expenses included in the
operating expenses are as follow:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

General administration expenses 1,159 847
Court expenses 971 956
Depreciation and amortization expenses 667 264
Consultancy expenses 584 564
Transportation expenses 360 300
Motary expenses 312 531
Taxes, duties and charges expenses 130 233
Marketing expenses 128 91
Non-deductible expenses 117 105
Printing, stationary and office expenses 91 75
Registration expenses 27 39
Other operating expenses 472 473
Total Eeneral administrative expenses 5,018 4,478

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31December 2014, personnel expenses included in the
operating expenses are as follows:
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Salaries 6,604 6,804
Social security premiums and other contributions 871 779
Personnel insurance expenscs 776 590
Other personnel expenses 434 418
Total personnel expenses 8,685 8.681
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20 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME/EXPENSE
For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, other operating income is as follows:

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Foreign exchange gains 32,490 6,176
Default interest income 1,248 430
Income from sales of assets held for sale 1,055 2803
Provisions reversed during the year 9835 7.835
Interest income from bank deposits 280 681
Rent income 26 36
Income from derivative transactions - 8.191
Dividend income - 13
Interest income from available for sale assets - 5
Other income 3,679 5,239
Total other nperatin; income 39,763 31,409

Other operating expenses:

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Losses from derivative transactions 14,909 -
Other expense 190 342
15,099 342

21 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

3 December 2015

31 December 2014

At the beginning of the year
Total number of outstanding shares 6, 500,000,000 6,500,000,000
At the beginning of the year
Total number of nutstanding shares 6,500,000,000 6,500,000,000
) Capital increase performed through internal resources and earnings per share calculated for the previous
peniod accordingly.
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
MNet income for the period 23,637 (3,863)
MNumber of outstanding shares
with a nominal value of TL 1 6, 500,000,000 6, 500,000,000
Earnings/Losses per share (TL) 0.003636 (0.000594)
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22 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, details of related party balances are as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

TL FC TL FC
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 1,128 2935 1,368 13,455
Bank deposits 1,128 2,935 1,368 13,455
Vakif Gayrimenkul Yatirnim Ortaklign A.S. 109 - 726 -
Giines Sigorta A.S. 2,110 - 862 -
Finance lease receivables 2,219 - 1,588 -
Vakif Faktoring A.S. 3,009 - 3,160 -
Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.5. 1,735 - 1,490 -
Vakaf Yatnm Menkul Degerler A.S. 217 - 200 -
Total investment securities
available for sale 4,961 - 4,850 -
Vakif Faktoring A.S. 2 - 198 -
Giines Sigorta A.S. - - 1 -
Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 2 - 96 -
Due from related parties 4 - 295 -
Tiirkive Vakiflar Bankasi: T.A.O. - 82273 - 51,499
Vakifbank International AG - 78,518 - 69,700
Borrowings - 160,791 - 121,199
Giines Sigorta A.S. 3,144 - 3,699 -
Due to related parties 3,144 - 3,699 -

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, details of related party transactions are
presented below:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Giines Sigorta A.S. 262 7
Vakif Gayrimenkul Yatinm Ortakhiin A S. 43 102
Finance lease interest income 305 109
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 171 345
Interest income from related parties 171 345
Vakifbank - vanrm fonlan - 5
Investment fund income from related parties - 5
Vakifbank International AG-interest expense 4,329 2,308
WVakifbank - interest expense 3,101 1,593
Vakithbank — commission expense 25 31
Finance expenses of related parties 7.455 3,932
Giines Sigorta A_S. 1,229 1,223
Vakif Emeklilik A.S. 36 34
Vakif Pazarlama ve Ticaret A.S. - 11
Other incomes of related parties 1,265 1.268
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22 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Gilnes Sigorta AS. 595 448
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 38 1
Valkaf Yatrnm Menkul Degerler AS. 23 23
Vakif Gayrimenkul Degerleme A.S. - 9
Other expenses of related parties 656 481
Vakif Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S. - 13
Dividend income - 13

Execative management compensation
Asat 31 December 2015 and 2014, Group’s executive management compensations are as follows:
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Compensation to the executive management 1,131 1,107

Total 1,131 1,107

The executive management of the Group consists of general manager, assistant general managers,
members of the board of directors and the members of the audit committee.

23 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Collaterals received

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the collaterals obtained by the Group against finance lease
receivables are as follows:

3 December 2015 31 December 2014
TL FC TL FC
Mortgages 167,764 329,697 149 446 256,194
Letters of guarantee 16,565 4,071 12,063 4,592
Cash blockage 121 79 656 1,810
Others 102,655 35,346 56,868 23,637
Total 287,105 369,193 219,033 186,233
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23 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Commitments
As at 31 December 2015, the Group has irrevocable commitments amounted to TL 29,140

(31 December 2014: TL 44,480) arising from letter of credits used for the tangible asset purchases
subject to finance leases. The distribution of the commitments according to currency types is as

follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Euro 5,897 8,555
US Dollar 6,569 12,566
CHF 1,596 8,364
TL 12,078 14,995
Total 29,140 44,480
Revocable commitmenis

As at 31 December 2015, Group's financial lease commitments amounts to TL 218,328 (31 December
2014: TL 40,081).

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
TL FC TL FC
Financial lease commitments 47473 170,855 2.144 37,937
Total 47473 170,855 2,144 37,937

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of derivative financial instruments are as

follows:
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
TL FC TL FC
Currency swap - purchase 92 385 - 151,078 -
Currency swap — sales - 101,303 - 148,628
Total 92385 101,303 151,078 148,628
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the below risks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of
capital. The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

. credit risk
. liquidity risk
. market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework. The Board of Directors monitors the effectiveness of the risk
management system through various mechanism established within the Group.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive conirol environment, in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is basically defined as the possibility that counterparty will fail to meet its obligations in
accordance under agreed terms of a contract. The Group aims to reduce exposed credit risks by
cntering into contracts with the counterpartics having high credibility and by obtaining sufficient
collateral against the loans provided. Besides, the Group analyze the financial position and the
credibility of the customers and aims to support this analysis with intelligence reports obtained from
the third parties. In addition, the sector and the geographical position of customers, where they operate
and other factors that may affect their operations are considered in the evaluation process of loans.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis to minimize the credit risk. Credit risk is aimed to be controlled by the limits set by the Board of
Directors.

Finance lease receivables cover many kinds of customers in different sectors. For the current balances
of the customers, credit evaluations are done periodically,

Balance sheet items of the Group, which are subject to credit risk, are as follows:

finance lease receivables

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
banks

other receivables
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, sectoral distribution of finance lease receivables
which are not under impaired is as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Amount (%) Amount (%)
Manufacturing 509,683 39.26 414,643 38.69
Construction 204,290 15.74 169 481 1581
Wholesale, retail and trading 147,927 11.39 138,153 12.89
Transportation, warchousing
and communication 111,606 8.60 114,830 10,71
Education 828,001 6,85 81,582 7.61
Hotels and restaurants 75,980 5.85 14,677 1.37
Real estate 51,643 398 26,042 243
Health and social services 38014 3.00 33,568 313
Agriculture 31,986 246 34938 326
Mining 19,491 1.50 30,838 288
Financial intermediary services 12,187 0.94 1,593 0.15
Other social and individual services 4,010 0.31 10,050 0.94
Others 1.687 0,12 1,288 0.13
Total 1,298,305 100 1,071,683 100
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its
financial liabilities,

Management of liguidity risk
Main responsibility for the liquidity risk management belongs to Board of Directors. Board of
Directors has created a suitable liquidity risk management for the short, medium and long term

funding and liquidity needs. The Group manages the liquidity risk by following forecasted and actual
cash flows, matching the terms of financial assets and liabilities and securing necessary funds.
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The following table provides undiscounted cash flows with respect to the contractual (or expected)
maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities:

Taotal Contraciual More
Carrying expected cash flows! & months 6-12 1-2 25 than 5
31 December 2015 Amount out Mows or less months Years VEArs VEArs
Funds Homowed 1.316,237 1,357,693 730,771 225,113 267,517 134,080
Miscellaneous payables and other
liabilities 25,923 25923 23,923
Total 1,342,160 1,383,616 756,696 125,313 267,517 134,080
Total Contractual Muore
Carrying  expected cash flows! & months 6-12 1-2 25 than 5
31 December 2014 Amonat ouf Mows or less months Years VEArs Vears
Funds Bomowed 1,024 360 105,321 183,561 107067 547,982 256,711
Miscellaneous payables and other
liabilities 56,073 56,073 56,073
Total 1,080,433 1,150,394 139634 107,067 547,982 256,711
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Group's income or the value of its financial instruments will be affected
through the changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and
credit spreads. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk through transactions in forcign currencies, such as leasc
operations and borrowings. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from forcign currency
transactions were recorded in the period transactions occurred. Monetary asscts and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are converted into TL at the exchange rates prevailing at balance
sheet date with the resulting exchange differences recognized in the statement of income as foreign
exchange gain or loss,
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group’s foreign currency assets and liabilities
with their TL equivalents are as follows:

31 December 2015 US Dollar Euro CHF Total

Banks 31,381 23,045 - 54,426

Finance lease receivables, net ™ 326,818 680,325 324 1,007 467

Other asscts 16 3,866 - 3,882

Total assets 358,215 T07,236 324 1.065,775

Borrowings 315,841 641,385 - 957,226

Miscellaneous payables 761 2,883 1,596 5,240

Other liabilities 969 8,353 - 9,322

Deferred Income 307 1,074 - 1,381

Total liabilities 317,878 653,695 1,596 973,169

Net financial statement position 40,337 53,541 (1,272) 92,606

Net off-balance sheet items position (32,434) (68,869) - (101,303)
Net foreign currency position 7.903 {15,328) (1,272) (8,697)
31 December 2014 US Dollar Euro CHF Total

Banks 6,310 7.564 - 13,874

Finance lease receivables, net " 316,822 526,546 - 843,368

Other assets 2 4,153 - 4,155

Total assets 323,134 538,263 - 861,397

Borrowings 274 845 438 369 - 713214

Miscellancous payables 7,069 17,052 6,469 30,590

Other liabilities 2,392 996 B 3,388

Provisions - - - -

Deferred Income 281 535 - 2l6

Total liabilities 284,587 456,952 6,469 748,008

Net financial statement position 38,547 81,311 (6,469) 113,389

Net off-balance sheet items position (87,494) (61,134) - (148,628)
Net foreign currency position (48,947) 20,177 (6,469) (35,239)
W Impaired receivables which is stated as FC in financial statements are not included.

2 Non-cash loans are not included in the caleulation of foreign currency position.
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The effects of 10 percent change of the TL against the following currencies on the consolidated
statement of income and consolidated equity for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December

2014 are shown below,

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Profit / (Loss) Equity
Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation  Depreciation
of foreign of foreign of foreign of foreign
31 December 2015 currency currency currency currency
10% change of the US Dollar against TL
1-MNet USD asset/liability 790 (790) 790 (790)
2-Hedged portion of TL against USD (-) - - - -
3-Net effect of US Dollar(1+2) 790 (T90) 790 (790)
10% change of the Euro against TL
4-Net Euro asset/liability (1,533) 1,533 (1.533) 1,533
S-Hedged portion of TL against Euro (-} - - - -
6-Net effect of Euro (4+5) (1,533) 1,533 (1,533) 1,533
10% change of the CHF against TL
T-Met CHF asset/liability (127) 127 (127) 127
8-Hedged portion of TL against CHF (-} - - - -
9-Net effect of CHF (7+8) (127) 127 (127) 127
TOTAL (3+6+9) (870) 870 (870) 870
"1 Equity effect includes profiv(loss) effect.
Profit / (Loss) Equity
Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation  Depreciation
of forcign of foreign of foreign of foreign

31 December 2014 currency currency currency currency
10% change of the US Dollar against TL
1-Net USD asset/liability (4,895) 4,895 (4,895) 4,895
2-Hedged portion of TL against USI (-) . - - -
3-Net effect of US Dollar(1+2) (4,895) 4,895 (4,895) 4,895
10% change of the Euro against TL
4-Net Euro asset/liability 2,018 (2,018) 2,018 (2,018)
S-Hedged portion of TL against Euro (-} - - - -
6-Net effect of Euro (4+5) 2,018 (2,018) 2,018 (2,018)
10% change of the CHF against TL
7-Net CHF asset/liability (647) 647 (647) 647
8-Hedged portion of TL against CHF (-) - - - -
9-Net effect of CHF (7+8) (647) 647 (647) 647
TOTAL (3+6+9) (3,524) 3,524 (3,524) 3,524
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Exposure fo inferest raie risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed to the risk of loss from fluctuations in
the future cash flows because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed
principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing
bands.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through its fixed and variable rate borrowings. The risk is

managed by appropriate distribution between fixed and variable rate borrowings,

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the interest bearing financial assets and liabilities of the Group are
as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Financial assets and liabilities with fixed interest rate

Time deposits - 14,523
Finance lease receivables, net 1,298,305 1,071,683
Borrowings 1,275,569 080,590
Financial assets and labilities with variable interest rate

Funds borrowed 40,668 43,770

Interest rate sensitivity

Interest rate sensitivity of profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the fair
values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held as at 31 December 2015 and effect on
net interest income of floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held.

Profit or Loss Equity
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2015 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial liabilities (4) 4 (4) 4
Total, net 4) 4 (4) 4
Profit or Loss Equity
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2014 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial liabilities (5) 5 (5) 5
Total, net (5) 5 (5) 5

(*)  Equity effect includes profiv(loss) effect.
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24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base and to maintain a balance between the debt and
equity in an effective way so as to increase its profit.

Along with no change in the strategy of the Group in 2014, the ratio of the equities to the debts is 11%
(31 December 2014: 10%). As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 | the debt to equity ratio
is as follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Borrowings 1,316,237 1,024,360
Miscellaneous payables 10,054 50,952
Other liabilities 15,869 5,121
Total Liabilities 1,342,160 1,080,433
Banks (-) (55,658) (15,300)
Net debt 1,286,502 1,065,133
Total Equity 143,644 104,972
Equity/Debt ratio %all %%l0

25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair values of financial instruments

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies, However, certain judgments made to
estimate the fair value can cause an adjustment to the fair value at current market conditions,

Fair values of the financial lease receivables and funds borrowed have been determined by discounting
the relevant cash flows by market interest rates prevailing as at balance sheet date . The carrying amounts
of the bank balances and miscellaneous payables and other liabilities are assumed that they approximate
their fair value due to their short-term nature.

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Financial assefs
Finance lease receivables, net 1,298,305 1,240,627 1,071,683 1,029,879
Banks 55,658 55,658 15,300 15,300
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,316,237 1,218,615 1,024, 360 1,000,403
Miscellancous payables and other liabilities 25,923 25923 56,073 56,073
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Classification of Fair Value Measurement

TFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure requires the disclosure of the classification of fair value
measurements according to a fair value hierarchy by reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in measuring fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value. This
classification basically relies on whether the relevant inputs are observable or not, Observable inputs
refer to the use of market data obtained from independent sources, whereas unobservable inputs refer
to the use of predictions and assumptions about the market made by the Company. This distinction
brings about a fair value measurement classification generally as follows:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs),

Classification requires using observable market data if possible.

The classification of fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
15 as follows at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014

31 December 2015 1. Level 2. Level 3. Level Total

Available for sale financial assets:
Investments in equity participations - - 4961 4961

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:

Derivative liabilities = (13,673) = (13,673)
Total Financial Assets/Liabilities - {13,673) 4,961 (8,712)
= Available for sale financial assets presented at 3. level includes fair values of equity shares whose fair

value has been determined by independent valuation institutions,
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31 December 2014 1. Level 2. Level 3. Level Total
Available for sale financial assets:
Investments in equity participations ' - - 4,850 4,850
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss:
Derivative liabilities - (11,543) - (11,543)
Total Financial Assets/Liabilities - (11,543) 4,850 (6,693)
" Available for sale financial assets presented at 3. level includes fair values of equity shares whose fair

value has been determined by independent valuation instimtions.

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Balance at the beginning of the period 4,850 4,716
Total gains for the period recognized under equity 111 134
Dividend received during the period - -
Balance at the end of the period 4,961 4,850

26 - OTHER ISSUES

MNone.

27 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

MNone.
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